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Appendix 4E
Preliminary Annual Report and Annual Repori for the Year Ended 31 December 2086

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

December 31, December 31,

2006 2085 Change Change
SUSD '308 SUSD 004 S '060 Yo
Revenue from ordinary activities 50,627 43,216 7411 17%
Profit (loss} from ordinary activities after 1ax {13,666} (17,787} 4,131 {23¥%
Net profit (loss) afler tax {13,666) {17,797) 4,131 {23Y%

Dividends:

The Company has not proposed to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.

Lxplanation of results:

Revenue from ordinary activities includes revenue from continuing operating activities and interest income.

Peofit {loss) from ordinary activities after tax includes loss on discontinued operations.

Please refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operaticns,” included in the

Company’s Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2606, which has been filed with this announcement for additional
explanations of results.

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange LTD and not shown elsewhere in this report:

December 31, December 31,
2806 2005
Net tangible assets per security §1.63 $2.05

All other information required by ASX listing rule 4.3 A is included in the attached Form 10-K. The accounts therein have been
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States.

All figures are reported in United States dollars.
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
Xi  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACTY
OF 1934

For the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2006
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 008-26357

LOOKSMART, LLTD.

{Exact nume of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 13-3904355
{State or other jerisdiciion of {LR.S. Empioyer
incorporation or ergunizaiion) Identiication No.)

625 Second Sireet, San Francisco, CA 94197
(415} 348-7000

{Address, inclading zip code, and telephore number, inciuding area code, of Registrant’s principal executive offices}

NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Commoen Stock, par value 30.081 per share
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{g) of the Aetf:
None

Indicate by cheek mark if the registrant 1s 2 well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registeant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d} of the Act. Yes O Ne

Indicate by cheek mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15{(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the Registrant was reguired to file such reports), and
{23 has been subject to such filing requirements {or the past 90 days. Yes Ne O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent fiers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this
Form 10-K or any amendment fo this Form 1-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-gccelerated filer. See defmition of
“aecelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large sccelerated filer O Accelerated Non-accelersted filer O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 125-2 of the Act). Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the regisirant, based upon the closing
price of common stock on the fast business day of the most recently completed second fiscal quarter, June 30, 2006, was approximately
$74,314,697. Shares of voting stock held by each executive officer, divector and person who owns 5% or more of the outstanding voting stock
have been excluded from this caleulation. This determimation of affiliste status 18 not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.
As of March 9, 2007, 23,001,260 shares of the registrant’s common stock were outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information called for by Part [I] of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the definitive proxy statement for the annual

meeting of stockholders of the Company, which will be filed no later than 120 days afler December 31, 2006,
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PART1

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-teoking statements within the meaning of Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934, ax amended. We use words such as “believes ", “intends ", “expects”,
“anticipates ", "plans ", “may ", "will " and similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements. Discussions comtaining forward-looking
statements may be found in the material set forth under “Business, " “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations " and in other sections of the report. Al forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, projections,
expectations or estimates concerning owr business, including demand for owr products and services, mix of revenue streams, ability to control
and/or reduce operating expenses, anficipated gross marging and operating results, cost savings, product developmeni efforts, general outlook
of our business amd indusiry, future profits or losses, competitive position, share-based compensation, and adequate Houidity to fund owr
operations and meet our other cash requirements, are inherenily uncertuin as they are based on our expectations and assumptions concerning
future events. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous known and unknawn risks and uncertainties. You should not place
undue relionce on these forward-looking statements. Our actual results could differ materially from those enticipated in the forward-looking
stutements for many reasons, including but not imited to, the possibility that we may fuil to preserve owr expertise in online advertising,
consumer website and social bookmarking product developmeni, the possibility that existing and potenfial distribution partners may opt {o
work with, or favor the products of, competitors if our competitors offer more favorable products or pricing terms, we may be unable 1o grow
sources of revenue other thun our listings revenue, we may be unable to increase growth in ouwr owned-and-operated sites, we may be unable w
license compelling content at reasonable casts, we may be unable to attain or muintain customer accepiance of our publisher solutions
products, changes in the distribution network composifion may lead to decreases in traffic volumes, we may be unable to maintain or improve
our match rate, average revenue per click, conversion rate or other wdvertiser metrics, we may be unable 1o achieve operating profitability, we
may he unable to attract and retain key personnel, we may have unexpected increases in costs and expenses, and oll other risks described
below in the section entitled "Risk Factors " and elsewhere in this report. Al jorward-looking statements in this report are mude as of the date
hereof, based on information available to us as of the date hereof, and except as required by applicable liww, we assume no obligation to update
any forward-locking statements.

AH share and per share information provided in this Anmual Report is presented giving effect 1o the one-for-five reverse stock split of our
common stock effected on Ociober 26, 2005

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

LookSmart is an online advertising and techoology company that provides relevant solutions for advertisers, publishers and consumers,
LookSmut offers advertisers targeted, pay-per-click (PPC) search advertising and banners via 2 monitored ad distribution network; a
customizable set of private-label solutions for publishers; and consumer websites and web tools.

The Company’s extensive ad distribution network includes proprietary websites, syndicated publishers, other Ad Networks, and search
partners. The Company’s application programming interface (AP} enables advertisers and agencies to connect any type of marketing or
reporting software with minimal effort, for easter access and management of ad campaigns.

LookSmmt’s customizable publisher solutions consist of a hosied, white-labeled AdCenter for Publishers to help monetize website traffic
and foster small and large advertiser relationships, as well as Furl for Publishers, a social bookmarking tool to increase site traffic.

1
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For consumers, the Company’s web sites and web tools offer essential search results with the ability to find, save and share articles and
other web content and link to them.

Products and Services
LookSmart’s revenue sources are divided into three categories:
1. Advertiser Solutions
2. Publisher Seluticns

3 Consumer Sites

Advertiser Solutions
LookSmart’s vertically focused consumer web propertics enable advertisers to reach demographically relevant audiences through
keyword-targeted products, banners and other ad units.

Advertisers can reach customers with our sponsored search products, also known as pay-per-click “PPC” advertising. Our sponsered
search products give advertisers complete control of their campaigns with different keyword matching options (Smart, Broad, Negative} and
targeting options (Keyword, or “run of site”} to maximize advertiser Return on Investment {“ROI™). Advertisers can also choose to display
advertising on our vertical sites to reach their targeted demographic.

Ads are distributed on FindArticles.com and our vertical search sites, reaching a segmented, demographically focused audience. Our
sponsored search products are also distributed through an extensive network of top-tier syndication partners.

LookSmart actively pursues relationships with portals, imternet service providers, media companies, Ad Network, search services and
other websites to maintain and increase the disiribution of our online advertising. These relationships are key drivers of our growth because
more disiribution typically results in more clicks and online advertising revenues. We derive the majority of our traffic from our distribution
network partners. Each click goes through LookSmart ® TrueLead ™, our network traffic monitoring process.

LookSmart’s AdCenter allows multiple users to upload keywords, menage daily budgets, set CPCs and view reports-——meluding spend
data that is updated hourly. Advertisers can also access keyword suggestions, price and traffic estimates, online help and FAQs.

An APl is available for advertisers and agencies that use third-party or in-house systems 1o anslyze and manage their search campaigns.

Publisher Solutions
LookSmart offers a suite of customizable tools and solutions that help publishers grow their audience, control advertiser relationships and
ehance the monetization of their sites. Our Publisher Solutions can be used alone or as a package-—and can be branded according to
publishers’ needs. We offer publishers:

» Enhanced control via the AdCenter for Publishers. We provide a complete private-labeled ASP solution that provides publishers the
ability to own and grow their advertiser relationships. Our AdCenter for Publishers offers a cusiomizable set of content, services
and technology to help publishers grow their audiences and build their revenue. We offor our publishers a “backfill” of advertisers
so they can quickly ramp their online operation and not lose time while establishing their advertiser relationships.
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Audience retention and growth via Furl for Publishers, an online, personalicustomized filing cabinet. This tool helps publishers
grow their audience by serving as an archiving tool that acts as a constant reminder of valuable content.

An ad network o augment revenues by helping publishers monetize traffic on their websites.

Consumer Sifes

LookSmart has various consumer sites that include both search and content sites, as well as a unigue social bookmarking and tagging tool
that enables consumers to archive webpages:

FindArticles.com-LookSmart’s FindArticles.com website enables consumers to scarch a large database of quality content from
more than 10 million articles. This service is accessible to consumers at www. FindArticles.com

Vertical search sites--LookSmart’s vertical search sites select appropriate resources by category and deliver more relevant search
results, including healily, finance, enteriainment and auto. We continue o refine our vertical offering and further define what will be
the most compelling user experience combining the right mix of search, content and site tools.

Farl.net—Furl.net is an online, social beokmarking service. Furl enables members to simply and securely save webpages in their
entirety. Unlike some other social bookmarking tools, Furl captures the original content of the page so that consumers do not lose
their content 1o a dead Hnk. As a result, users cao instantly find what they have historically saved by searching their online
personalized categories from any computer. [n addition, Furl users can publicly share links to bookmarked webpages and help other
users find those pages.

Technology

LookSmart’s principal assets include our software and systems for storing and indexing webpage mformation, updating the index,
handling search queries, serving search results, creating and updating our vertical search sites and integrating third-party content, features and
functionality inte such sites, and tracking, analyzing and reporting on customer campaigns. We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright
and trademark laws and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property and proprietary righis. Our frademarks include LookSmart #,
WiseNut ¥, Ad Solutions #, Furl ™ and Zeasl . We also have patents pending on various aspects of our ad delivery and search technologies.

We have developed a proprictary system, the AdCenter, to create, track, analyze, report and optimize customers” advertising campaigns.
The AdCenter collects click data for cach listing that we manage for our customers, filters out invalid clicks and provides customer billing. In
addition, we provide cach of our advertising customers with a password-protected online account that enables them to track, analyze and
optimize their search marketing campaigns using online reports. The platform also includes an interface for publishers to access ad syndication
feed reports and revenue information.

Search Technalogy

Our commercial search technology imcludes software for providing high-volume search results, building and updating indexes, and
incorporating maximum CPC and click-through-rate in the placement of advertisements in search results, updated throughout the day. We
utilize this search technology primarily in support of our other consumer sites initiatives.

We also continue fo develop Furl.net with respect to search technologies. 1f a Furl user archives a webpage, our servers avtomatically
craw! that page and include it in our updated web search index. Our unique ranking algorithm also makes use of proprictary Furl data to
improve the relevance of these web search resulis,
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Competition

The online advertising industry is constantly evolving, changes rapidly and is highly competitive.

One of the major factors contributing to this competitive environment 18 that providers of all online advertising formats compete for a
share of the advertisers’ limited advertising budgets. The large search engines often recetve the biggest portion of the scarch marketing budget.
With greater capital and technical resources, and greater brand recognition, the larger search engines are often first priority in the mind of the
advertiser, agency ot buyer.

We compete on four main fronts, 1) attracting and growing our base of advertisers to purchase our online advertising producis, 2)
attracting and maintaining distribution network partners o join our network, 33 attracting and maintaining publishers to utilize our technology
assets, and 4) attracting and maintaining consumers to our consumer sites. The basis on which we compete differs amongst the four fronts. In
addition, while internet advertising continues to grow year over year, we are still challenged by marketing budgets that include traditional
media such as television, radio and print.

Government Regulations

We are subject to a number of domestic state and federal Jaws that affect companies conducting business on the Internet. In addition,
because of the increasing popularity of the Internet and the growth of online services, laws relating to user privacy, freedom of expression,
content, advertising, information security and intellectual property rights are being debated and considered for adoption by many countries
throughout the world.

In the U.8.,, state and federal laws relating to the liability, of providers of onling services for activities of their consumers, and the lisbility
of providers of online advertisers ads and activities, are currently being tested by a number of claims, which include actions for defamation,
{ibel, mvasion of privacy and other data protection claims, tort, untawful activity, copyright or trademark imfringement, or other theories based
on the nature and content of the materials searched and the ads posted or the content generated by consumoers. Likewise, other federal laws
could have an impact on our buginess. For example, the Digital Millenmium Copyright Act hag provistons that limit, but do not eliminate, our
liability for listing or Hnking to third-party web sites that include materials that infringe copyrights or other rights, so long as we comply with
the statutory requirements of this Act. The Children’s Online Protection Act and the Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act restrict the
distribution of materials considered harmful to childeen and impose additional restrictions on the ability of online services to collect
information from minors. in addition, the Protection of Children from Sexual Predators Act of 1998 requires online service providers to report
evidence of violations of federal child pornography laws under certain circumstances.

I addition, the application of existing laws regulating or requiring licenses for certain businesses of our advertisers, inclading, for
example, distribution of pharmaceuticals, adult content, online gambling, financial services, aleohol or firearms, can be unclear. Application of
these laws in an unenticipated manner could expose us to substantisl liability and restrict our ability to deliver services to our consumers.

Infernational Operations

Following the termination of our distribution network partner contract with Microsoft in the first quarter of 2004, we concluded that our
international businesses were no longer strategically or fimancially viable. As a result, we closed our foreign offices and sold the remaining
assets of these businesses in the first half of 2004, We are still in the process of {inalizing certain transactions relating to these operations. We
expect to finalize the dissolution of these entities during 2007, which may result in minor adjustments to the current balance sheet estimates
related to the final closure of these entitics.
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Marketing
We use both traditional and non-traditional means and media types to grow our business. 1o addition to advertising and public relations
programs, we seek fo retain customers through & mix of informative marketing communications, helpful account tools, continual customer
support and an optimal user experience.
LookSmart provides relevant content, advertising and technology solutions to consumers, advertisers and publishers. Marketing activities
are designed to support and grow our business by largeting:
»  Advertisers—We deliver online ads to a network of syndicated publishers and search engine partners, as well as through owned and
operated sites.
» Publishers-We offer a suite of customizable tools and solutions that help publishers grow their revenues and audience. We also
help them effectively grow and manage advertiser relationships.
» Consumers-Our consumer websites are where consumers look for what they need, coupling search results with the ability to save
content and share links using Furlnet.

Emplovees

Our future success 1$ substantially dependent on the performance of cur sentor management and key fechnical and sales personnel, and
our continuing ability to attract and retain highly qualificd technical and managerial staff. As of December 31, 2006, we had 120 employeces.

See [tem 1A, “Risk Factors” for a further discussion on some of the risks we face related to our employces.

Avatlable Information

Our website, www.loaksmart.com , provides access, without charge, to our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q),
current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as scon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission {“SEC™).

Materials we fi¢ with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 Fifth Street, NE, Washington, D.C.
20349, information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obiained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also
maintaing a website at www.sec.gov that containg reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding our company that
we file electronically with the SEC.

Lh
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before making an investment decision regarding our common stock. 1f any of the
foHowing risks actually oceur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be harmed. In that case, the trading price of our
common stock could decline and our mvestors could fose all or part of their mvestment. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may also impair our business operations.

Risks Related to aur Business

Our financial results are highly concentrated in the online advertising business; if we are unable to grow online advertising revenues
and find alternative sources of revenue, our financial results will suffer

The display of listings advertisements accounted for substantially all of our revenues for the yesr ended December 31, 2006. Our success
depends upon advertisers choosing to use, and distribution network partners choosing to distribute, our listings produets. Advertisers and
distrtbutton network partners may not adopt our lstings products at projected rates, or changes in market conditions may adversely affeet the
use or distribution of listings advertisements. Because of our revenue concentration in the online advertising business, such shortfalls or
changes could have a negative impact on our financial results. Also, many of our products are offered to website publishers who use them to
display or generate revenue from their online advertisements. 1 we are unable to gencrate significant revenue from our online advertising
business, or if market conditions adversely affect the use or distribution of online advertisements generally, our results of operations, financial
condition and/or Hquidity will suffer.

We rely primarily on our netweork of distribution network partners to generate paid clicks; if we are unable to maintain or expand this
network, eur ability to generate revenues may be seriously harmed

The success of our online advertisement producis depends in large part on the size and guality of our distribution network. We may be
unable to maintain or add distribution network partners of satisfactory guality in our distribution network at reasonable revenue-sharing rates,
or at all. Our distribution network is concentrated, with our three largest distribution network partners accounting for approximately 28% of our
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006. in the fourth quarter of 2006, no one individual disiribution partner accounted for more than
10% of revenue. [n 2005 our three largest distribution network partners accounted for approximately 46% of our revenues. # we lose any
significant portion of our distribution network, we would need to find alternative sources of quality click traffic to replace the lost paid clicks.
In the past, we have lost portions of our distribution network, such as when our contract with Microsoft’s MSN expired in the first quarter of
2004. Although alernate sources of click traffic are currently available in the market, they may not be available at reasonable prices, they will
fikely be subject to competition from various paid search providers, and they may be of lower quality. There s fierce competition among search
providers to sign agreements with traffic providers. We may be unable to negotiate and sign agreements with guality traffic providers on
favorable terms, if at all. If we are unsuccessful in maintaining and expanding our distribution network, then our ability to generate revenues
may be seriously harmed.

We rely on our AdCenter for Publisher customers to generate paid clicks; if we are unable to maintain these relationships or add
additional customers, our ability fo generate revenue may be seriously harmed

Our success depends in large part on our ability to sign and maintain license and revenue share arrangements with our AdCenter for
Publisher customers. We may be ungble to maintain or add AdCenter for Publisher customers of satisfactory quality at reasonable revenue-
sharing rates, or at al. Our overall revenue is concentrated, with one AdCenter for Publisher customer accounting for approximately 10% of
our revenue for the vear ended December 31, 2006, [f we ose this AdCenter for Publisher customer, we would need to find alternative sources
of revenue to replace the lost revenue share on paid clicks. Other publishers who become our
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customers may not be available at reasonable revenue share rates, will likely be subject to competition from various other online advertising
service providers, and may have smaller sudiences or viewers that respond less fo online advertisements. 1f we are unable to maintsin or
generate new AdCenter for Publisher arrangements, then our ability to generate revenue may be seriously harmed.

We have generated significant losses in the past and we may be unable to achieve operating profitability in the foreseeable future, and
it we achieve profifability, we may be unable to maintain it, which eould result in a deeline in our stock price

We had a net logs of $13.7 million {n the year ended December 31, 2006 and as of December 31, 2006 our accumuiated deficit was
$217.5 milHon. We may be unable to achieve profitability in the foresceable future and, if we regain profitability, we may be unable to
maintain it. Our ability to achieve and maintain profitability wil depend on our ability to generate additional revenues and contain our
expenses. To generate additional revenues, we will need to expand our network of distribution network partners, expand our proprietary traffic
sources such as our owned-and-operated websites, offer our publisher products to publisher customers and expand our advertiser base. We may
be unable to accomplish some or any of these goals because of the risks identified in this report or for unforeseen reasons. Also, we may be
unable to contain our costs due to the need to make revenue sharing payments to ow distribution network partners, to invest in product
development, marketing and search technologies (exemplified by our rencwed focus on our vertical search business), and enhance our search
services. Because of the foregoing factors, and others outlined in this reporl, we may be unable to achieve profitability in the future, which
could result in a decline {n our stock price.

If we experience downward pressure on our revenue per click and/or match rate, or we are unable to rebuild our revenue per click
and/or mateh rate, our financial results will suffer

We have experienced, and may in the future experience, downward pressure on our average revenue per click and average match rate, or
rate at which paid listings are matched against search queries, due to various factors. [n the year ended December 31, 2006, for example, our
average revenue per click decreased to $0.11 in 2006 compared to 50.12 in 2005, this represents an 8% decrease. We may experience decreases
in revenue per click or average match rate in the future for many reasons, ncluding the erosion of our advertiser base, the reduction in average
advertiser spend, the reduction in the number of listings purchased by advertisery, or for other reasons. If our revenue per click or average
match rate falls for any reason, or if we are unable to grow our revenue per click and average mateh rate, then we may be unable to achieve our
financial projections and our stock price would likely suffer.

Our growth depends on our ability to retain and grow oar advertiser base; if our advertiser base and average advertiser spend falls,
our financial results will suffer

Our growth depends on our ability to build an advertiser base that corresponds with the characteristics of our distribution network. Qur
distribution network, which currently consists of a diversified network of small distribuiion sources, may change as new distribution sources
are added and old distribution sources are removed. Advertisers may view these changes to the distribution network negatively, and existing ot
potential advertisers may elect to purchase fewer or no listings advertisements for display on our distribution network. H this ocours, it 1s likely
that our average revenue per click and average match rate may decline, we may be unable to meet our financial guidance, and our stock price
would lkely suffer.

Our growth depends spon our ability to retain and grow our audience for our consumer sites, and there are risks associated with
introducing new products and services

To maintain and grow our revenue, part of our strategy 1% to incresse the amount, frequency and page views by censumers of our
consumer sites. Our development, testing and implementation efforts for these products and services have required, and are expected to
continue to require, substantial nvestments of our time. We recently
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began owning and operating our own websites, and we may not gain enough of an audience for our consumer sites to generate any, of
sufficient, revenue to justify our efforts, or we may gain a sufficient audience but be unable to gain advertiser acceptance of our consumer sies.
Also, if we do not improve and enhance our consumer $ites in a timely manoer, we may lose existing customers to our competitors or fail to
attract new customers, which may adversely affect our performance and results of operations.

If we are unable to license or acquire compelling content at reasonable costs, we may be unable to inerease traffic to and revenue from
our vertical search sifes

Our future success depends in part upon our ability to aggregate compelling content and search results and deliver them through our
online properties. We license much of the content on our onling properties, such as journal articles and news Hems, from third parties. Our
ability to maintain and build relationships with third-party content providers will be important for our success. Also, as competition for
compelling content increases both domestically and internationally, our content providers may increase the prices at which they offer their
content to us and potential content providers may not offer their content on terms agreeable to us. An increase in the prices charged to us by
third-party content providers could harm our operating vesults and financial condition. 1f we are unable to license or acquire compeling content
at reasonable prices, if other companies broadeast content that is similar to or the same as that provided by us, the number of consumers of our
services may not grow at all or may grow at a slower rate than anticipated, which could harm our operating results.

Our growth depends upon our ability to offer and support our fechnology services to online publishers, and there are risks associated
with introducing new products and services

To maintain and grow our revenue, part of our strategy i to offer and host syndicated technology services to online publishers. Qur
dovelopment, testing and implementation efforts for these products and services have requived, and are expected to continue to require,
substantial investments of our time. Also, we do not have significant experience offering services to online publishers, and we may not gain
publisher acceptance of our offerings. We may be unable to successfully implement syndicated publisher solutions, or our implementation of a
solution may interfere with our ability to operate our other products and services or other implementations, or a publisher customer may decide
not to use or continue te use our solution. These failures could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

If we do not introduce new and upgraded products and services and successfully adapt to our rapidly changing industry, our financial
condifion may suffer

The Internet search industry is rapidly evolving and very turbulent, and we will need to continue developing new and upgraded products
and services, adapt to new business environments and competition, and generate traffic to our consumer sites to maintain and grow revenue and
reach our profitability goals. New search and advertising technologies could emerge that make our services comparatively less useful or new
business methods could otherwise emerge that divert web traffic away from our search network and consumer web properties. Compelition
from other web businesses may prevent us from attracting substantial waffic to our services. Also, we may inaceurately predict the direction of
search technologies or the advertising market, which could lead us to make investments in technologies and products that do not generate
sufficiont returns. We may face platform and resource constraints that prevent us from developing upgraded products and services. We may fail
to successfully identify new products or services, or fail to bring new products or services to market in a timely and efficient manner. Rapid
industry change makes it difficuli for us to forecast our results accurately, particulasty over longer periods. We face the risk that we may be
unable to adapt to new developments in the search mdustry, or that our new consumer products and services may not be broadly adopted by
customers, in which case we would eventually need to obiain additional financing or cease operations.
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We face infense competifive pressures, which could materially and adversely atfect our finaneial results

We compete in the relatively new and rapidly evolving paid scarch industry, which presents many uncertainties that could require us to
further refine cur business model. We compete with compantes that provide paid placement products, paid inclusion products, and other forms
of search marketing. We compete for advertisers on the basis of the relevance of owr search resulis, the price per click charged to advertisers,
the volume of clicks that we can deliver to advertisers, tracking and reporting of campalgn results, customer service and other factors. We also
compete for distribution network partners and for ad placement on those partners” sites on the basis of the relevance of our search results and
the price per click charged to advertisers. We also experience competition for our owned-and-operated websites and for offering our technology
to website publishers. Some of our competitors have larger distribution networks and proprietary traffic bases, longer operating histories,
areater brand recognition, higher prices per clck, better relevance and conversion rates, or better products and services than we have.

Our acquisition of businesses and technologies may be costly and time-consuming; acquisitions may also dilute our existing
stockholders

From time to time we evaluate corporate development opportunities, and when appropriste, we intend to make acquisitions of, or
significant mvestments in, complementary companies of technologies to increase our technological capabilities and expand our service
offerings. Acquisitions may divert the sttention of management from the day-to-day operations of LookSmart. it may be difficult to retain key
management and techaical personnel of the acquired company during the transition period following an acquisition. Acguisitions or other
sirategic tfransactions may algo result in dilution to our existing stockholders #f we 1ssue addittonal equity securities and may increase our debt.
We may also be required to amontize significant amounts of intangible assets, record impairment of goodwill in connection with future or past
acquisitions, or divest non-performing assets at below-market prices, which would adversely affect our operating resulis.

We have acquired businesses and technologies in recent years, including the acquisition of Net Nanny from BioNet Systems, LLC in the
second guarter of 2004, and from Farl, LLC in the third quarter of 2004, lotegration of acquired companies and fechnologies into LookSmart is
fikely to be expensive, time-consuming and a straln on cur managerial resources. We may not be successful in integrating any acquired
businesses or technologies and these transactions may not achieve anticipated business benefits,

Our success depends on cur ability to attraef and retain key personnel; if we were unable to continue to atfract and retain key
personnel in the future, our business could be materizally and adversely impacted

Our success depends on our ability to identify, aitract, retain and motivaie highly skilled development, technical, sales, and management
personnel. We have a limited number of key development, technical, sales and management personnel performing critical company functions,
and the loss of the services of any of our key employees, particularly any of our executive team members o key technical personnel, could
adversely affect our business. In recent years, we have experienced significant turnover in our management team. For example, our Chief
Financial Officer joined us in November 2003, Other members of management have joined us in the last year, and the management team as a
whole has had only a {imited time to work together. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retaim our key employees or that we can
identify attract and retain highly skilled personnel in the future.

We face eapacity constraints on our software and infrastructure systems that may be costly and time-consuming to resolve

We use proprictary and licensed software to craw! the web and index web pages, ereate and edit Hstings, compile and distribute our
search results, track peid clicks, and detect click fraud. Any of these software systems may contain undetected errors, defects or bugs or may
fail to operate with other software applications. The
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following developmenits may strain our capactty and result i technical difficulties with our website or the websites of sur distribution network
partners:

»  customization of our search results for distribution to particular distribution network partners,
»  substantial mcreases in the number of search queries to our database,
»  substantial mcreases in the number of Hstings in our search databases, or

. the addition of new products or new features or changes to our products.

If we experience difficulties with our sofiware and infrastructure systems or we fail to address these 1ssues in a timely manner, we may
{ose the confidence of advertisers and distribuiion network partners, our revenues may decline and our business could sulfer. In addition, as we
expand our service offerings and enter into new business arcas, we may be required to significantly modify and expand our software and
mfrastructure systems. 1¥ we fail to accomplish these tasks in a timely manner, our business will likely suffer.

Risks Related to Operating in our Industry

If we fail to prevent, detect and remove invalid clicks, we could lose the confidence of our advertisers, thereby causing our business to
suffer

Invalid clicks, most oflen due to “click fraud”, are an ongoing problem for the lnternet advertising indusiry, and we are exposed to the
risk of invalid clicks on our paid listings and cur publisher solutions customers’ listings. lovalid clicks occur when a person or rebetic software
causes a click on a paid Hsting to occur for some reason other than fo view the underlying content. We invest significant time and resources in
preventing, deteciing and elimmating invalid traffic from our distribution network. However, the perpetrators of chick fraud have developed
sophisticated methods to evade detection, and we are unlikely to detect and remove all invalid traffic from our search network. We are subject
to advertiser complaints and litigation regarding invalid clicks, and we may be subject to advertiser complaints, claims, litigation or inguiries in
the future. We have from time to time credited invoices or refunded revenue to our customers due to suspicious traffic, and we expect to
continue to do so in the future. [ our systems to detect invalid traffic are insufficient, or if we find new evidence of past invalid clicks, we may
have to issue credits or refunds retroactively to our advertisers, and we may still have to pay revenue share to our distribution network pariners.
This could negatively affect our profitebility and hurt our brand. 1f raffic consisting of mvalid elicks is not detected and removed from our
search network, the affected advertisers may experience a reduced returm on their investment in our online advertising because the invalid
clicks will not lead to sctual sales for the advertisers. This could lead the advertisers to become dissatisfied with our products, which could lead
to losgs of advertisers and revenue and could materially and adversely affect our finaneial results.

Any failure in the performance of sur key operating systems could materially and adversely atfect our revenues

Any system failure that interrupts our hosted products or services, including our search service, whether caused by computer viruses,
software failure, power interruptions, intruders and hackers, or other causes, could harm our financial results. For example, our system for
tracking and inveicing clicks is dependent upon a proprietary software platform. If we lose key personnel or experience a failure of software,
this system may fail. In such event, we may be unable to track patd clicks and invoice our customers, which would materially and adversely
affeet our finaneial results and business reputation.

The ccearrence of & natural disaster or unanticipated problems at our principal headquarters or at a third-party facility could cause
interruptions o delays in our business, loss of data or could render us unable to provide some services. Our California facilities exist on or near
known ¢arthquake fault zones and a significant earthguake could cause an interruption in our services. We do not have back-up sites for our
main customer
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operations center, which is located at our San Francisco, California office. An interruption in our ability to serve search results, track paid
clicks, and provide customer support would materially and adversely affect our financial results.

Our business and operations depend on Internef service providers and third parfy technology providers, and any failure or system
downtime experienced by these eompanies could materially and adversely affect our revenues

Our consumers, distribution network partners and customers depend on Intemet service providers, online service providers and other third
partics for aceess to our search results. These service providers have experienced sigmificant outages in the past and could experience outages,
delays and other operating difficulties in the future. The oceurrence of any or all of these events could adversely affect our reputation, brand
and business, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results.

We have an agreement with Savvis Communications, [ne. to house equipment for web serving and networking and to provide network
conpectivity services. We also have agreements with third-party click tracking and ad-serving technology providers. We also have an
agreement with AboveNet Communications, Inc. to provide network connectivity services. We do not presently maintain fully redundant click
tracking, customer account and web serving systems at separate locations. Accordingly, our operations depend on Savvis and AboveNet to
protect the systems in their data centers from gsystem failures, earthguake, five, power loss, water damage, telecommunications failure, hackers,
vandalism and similar events. Neither Savvis not AboveNet guarantees that our Internet access will be uninterrupted, error-free ot secure. We
have developed a 30-day disaster recovery plan to respond in the event of a catastrophic loss of our critical, revenue-generating systems. We
have an agreement with Raging Wire, loc. in Sacramento, California to provide co-location and networking services for our eritical systems in
such an event. Although we maintain property insurance and business interruption insurance, we cannot guaraniee that our insurance will be
adequate to compensate us for all tosses that may occur as a result of & catastrophic system failure. Also, if our third-party click tracking or ad-
serving technology providers experience service interruptions, errors or security breaches, our ability to track, realize and record revenue would
suffer.

We may face Hability for claims related fo our products and services, and these ¢laims may be costly to resolve

Companies in the Internet, technology and media mndustries own large numbers of patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secrets and
frequently enter into Htigation based on allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights. These claims might, for
example, be made for trademark, copyright or patent infringement, defamation, negligence, personal injury, breach of contract, unfair
adverlising, unfair competition, invasion of privacy or other claims. As we face Increasing competition and expand the number of websites that
we publish, the possibility of intellectual property rights claims against us grows, and we cannot guarantee that our services do not infringe the
intelicctual property righis of others. Lawsuits are filed against us from time to time, and we are currenily subiect to two purported class action
lawsuils in connection with our listings services. in addition, we are obligated in some cases to indemnify our customers or distribution
network partners in the event that they are subject to claims that our services infringe on the rights of others.

Litigating these claims could consume significant amounts of time and money, divert management’s attention and resources, cause delays
in integrating acquired technology or releasing new products, of require us o enter into royalty or licensing agreements. Royalty or Heensing
agreements, i required, may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all. Our insurance may not adequately cover claims of this type, if at all.
I a court were to determine that some aspect of our search services or listings infringed upon or viclated the rights of others, we could be
prevented from offering some or all of our services, which would negatively impact our revenues and business. For any of the foregoing
reasons, litigation nvolving our Hstings business and technology could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and
financial condition.
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We could be subject to infringement claims that may be costly to defend, result in the payment of settlements or damages or lead us to
change the way we conduct our business

Internet, technology, media companies and patent holding companies often possess a significant number of patents. Further, many of
these companies and other parties are actively developing scarch, indexing, ¢lectronic commerce and other web-related technologies, as well ag
a variety of online business models and methods, We believe that these parties will continue to take steps to protect these technologies,
including, but not limited to, secking patent protection. As a result, we may face claims of infringement of patents and other intellectual
property rights held by others. Also, as we expand our business, license or acguire content and develop new technologies, products and
services, we may become imereasingly subject to intellectual property infringement claims. In the event that there is a determination that we
have infringed third-party proprietary rights such as patents, copyrights, trademark rights, trade seeret rights or other third party rights such as
publicity and privacy rights, we could incur substantial monetary Habihity, be required to enter o costly royalty or licensing agreements or be
prevented from using the rights, which could require us to chenge our business practices tn the future and limit our ability to compete
effectively. We may also meur substantial expenses in defending against third-party infringement claims regardless of the merit of such
clahms. In addition, many of our agreements with our customers or affiliates require us to indemnify them for certain third-party intellectual
property infringement claims, which could increase our costs in defending such claims and our damages. The occurrence of any of these results
could harm our brand and negatively impact our operating results.

Litigation, regulation, legislation or enforcement actions directed at or materially affecting us may adversely affect the commercial use
of our products and services and our financial results

New lawsuits, laws, regulations and enforcement actions applicable to the online industry may Hmit the delivery, appearance and content
of our advertising or websites or otherwise adversely affect our business. [f such laws are enacied, or i existing laws are interpreted to restrict
the types and placements of advertisements we can carry, it could have a material and adverse effect on owr financial results. For example, in
2002, the Federal Trade Commission, in response to a petition from a private organization, reviewed the way in which search engines disclose
paid placement or pald inclusion practices to Internet consumers and issued guidance on what disclosures are necessary to avoid misleading
consumers about the possible effects of paid placement or paid inclusion Hstings on the search results. In 2003, the United States Department of
Justice issued statements indicating its belef that displaying advertisements for online gambling might be construed as aiding and abetting an
illegal activity under federal law. 1o 2004, the United States Congress considered new laws regarding sale of pharmaceutical products over the
Internet and the use of adware to distribute advertisements on the lnternet, any of which could, if enacted, adversely affect our business. fany
new law or government agency were to reguire changes in the labeling, delivery or content of our advertisements, or if we are subject to legal
proceedings regarding these issues, it may reduce the desirability of our services or the types of advertisements that we can run, and our
business could be materially and adversely harmed.

In addition, legislation or regulations, including compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Section 4047}, present
ongoeing compliance risks, and a faidure to comply with these new laws and regulations could materially harm our business. For example, in the
course of the general evaluation of internal controls and the 2006 close process, six significant deficiencies in the design and operation of our
internal controls were identified. We have addressed and are now in the process of remedying these defieiencies. 1t 1s possible that as we
continue our Section 404 compliance efforts we will identify significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses, in the design and operation of our
internal controls. We may be unable to remedy any of these matters in a timely fashion, and/or our independent registered public accounting
firm may not agree with our remediation efforts in connection with their Scetion 404 attestation. Such failures could impact our ability to
record, progess, summarize and report finencial information, and could mpact market perception of the quality of our financial reporting,
which could adversely affect our business and our stock price.
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Privacy-related regulation of the Internet could limit the ways we currently collect and use personal information, which could decrease
our advertising revenues or inerease our costs

Internet user privacy has become an 1ssue both in the United States and abroad. The United States Congress s considering new legislation
to regulate Internet privacy, and the Federal Trade Commission and government agencies in some states and countries have mvestigated some
Internet companies, end lawsuits have been filed against some loternet companies, regarding their handling or use of personal information. Any
laws mmposed to protect the privacy of Internet consumers may affect the way in which we collect and use personal information. We could
incur additional expenses if new laws or court judgments, in the Hnited States or abroad, regarding the use of personal information are
introduced or if any agency chooses Lo investigate our privacy practices.

Our consumer sites place information, known as cookies, on a user’s hard drive, generally without the user’s knowledge or consent. This
technology enubles website operators to target specific consumers with & particular advertisement, to limit the number of times a user is shown
a particular advertisement, and to track certain behavioral dsta. Although some Internet browsers allow consumers to modify their browser
seltings to remove cookies at any time or to prevent cookies from being stored on their hard drives, many consumers are not aware of this
option or are not knowledgeable enough to use this option. Some privacy advocates and governmental bodies have suggested limiting or
eliminating the use of cookies. If this technology 18 reduced or Hmited, the [nternet may become less atiractive to advertisers and sponsors,
which could result in & decline fn our revenues.

We and some of our distribution network partners or advertisers retain information about our consumers. if others were able to penetrate
the network security of these user databases and access or misappropriate this information, we and our distribution network partners or
advertisers could be subject to Hability. These claims may result in Htigation, our involvement in which, regardiess of the outcome, could
reguire us to expend significant time and finencial resources.

Ounline commerce security risks, including security breaches, identity theft, service disrupting attacks and viruses, could harm our
reputation and the conduct of our business, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results

A fundamental requirement for online commerce and communications 15 the secure storage and transmission over public networks of
confidential information. Although we have developed and use systems and processes that are designed to protect consumer information and
prevent fraudulent credit card transactions and other security breaches, our security measures may not prevent security breaches or identity
theft that could harm our reputation and business. Currently, & significant number of our consumers provide credit card and other financial
mformation and authorize us to Ml their credit card accounts direetly for all transaction fees charged by us. We rely on encryption and
authentication technology to provide the security and authentication to effect secure transmission of confidential information, including
customer credit card numbers. Advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments may
result in a compromise or breach of the technology used by us to protect transaction data. [n addition, any party whe is able to ilicitly obtain a
user’s password could access the user’s transaction data. An increasing number of websites have reported breaches of their security. Any
compromise of our security could damage our reputation and expose us to a risk of litigation and possible Hability. The coverage Iimits of our
insurance policies may not be adequate to reimburse us for losses caused by security breaches.

Additionally, our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, physical or electronie break-ins, and stimilar disruptions, and we have
experienced “denial-of-service” type attacks on our system that have made all or portions of our websites unavailable for periods of time . We
may need to expend significant resources to protect against security breaches or fo address problems caused by breaches. Discuptions in our
services and damage caused by viruses and other attacks could cause a loss of user confidence in our systems and services, which could lead to
reduced usage of sur products and services and materially adversely affect our business and financial results.
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New tfax freatment of companies engaged in Infernet commerce may adversely affeet the commercial use of our search service and our
financial results

Tax suthorities at the international, federal, state and local levels are currently reviewing the appropriate tax treatment of companies
engaged in Internet commerce. New or revised state tax regulations may subject us or our advertisers to additional state sales, income and other
taxes. We cannot predict the effect of current attempts to impose sales, income or other taxes on commerce over the Internet. New or revised
taxes and, in particular, sales taxes, would likely increase the cost of domg business online and decrease the atiractiveness of advertising and
seling goods and services over the [nternel. Any of these ovents could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Risks Related fo Accounting Matters

Accounting for employee stock options using the fair value method could significantly reduce {increase} our net income (loss)

As deseribed in Note 1 {Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this report, we adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”) starting January 1, 2006. Under SFAS 123R,
we are required to account for the fair value of siock options granied to employees as compensation expense, which 1s likely to have a
significant adverse impact on our results of operations, as determined in accordance with GAAP, and net income {loss} per share. #f we reduce
or alter our use of share-based compensation te minimize the recognition of these expenses, our ability to recruit, motivate and retain
employees may be mpaired, which could put us at a competitive disadvantage in the marketplace. To prevent any net decrease in their overatl
compensation packages, we might decide to make corresponding increases in the cash compensation we pay to current and prospective new
employees. An increase in employee wages and salaries would diminish our cash available for marketing, product development and other uses
and might adversely tmpact our results of operations.

Risks Related fo the Capital Markets

Our quarterly revenues and operating results may fluctuate for many reasons, each of which may negatively affect our stock price
Our revenues and operating results will lkely fluctuate significantly from guarter to quarter as a result of a variety of factors, including:
»  change in the composition of owr AdCenter customer base,
»  change in composition of our AdCenter for Publishers customer base,

»  changes in our distribution network, particularly the gain or loss of key distribution network partners, or changes in the
implementation of search results on partner websiles,

»  changes in the number of advertisers who purchase our listings, or the amount of spending per customer,
»  changes m the amount, fiequency and page views by consumers of our consumer sites,

»  the revenue-per-click we receilve from advertisers, or other fuctors that affect the demand for, and prevailing prices of, Internet
advertising and marketing services,

o systems downtime on our AdCenter, our website or the websites of our distribution network partners,
» fluctuations in audience and page impressions, or

» the effect of SFAS 123R, which became effective January 1, 2006, and requires that we account for the fair value of stock awards
granted to employees g compensation expense.
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Due t¢ the above factors, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our financial results ave not necessarily meaningful, and you
should not rely on past financial results as an indicator of our future performance. if our financial results in any future period fall below the
expectations of securities analysts and mvestors, the market price of our securities would lkely decline.

Our stock price is extremely volatile, and such veolatility may hinder investors’ ability to resell their shares tor a profit or avoid a loss

The stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations tn recent years, and the stock prices of Internet companies

have been extremely volatile. The low trading volume of our common stock may adversely affect its liquidity and reduce the number of market
makers andfor large investors willing to trade in our common stock, making wider fluctuations in the quoted price of our common stock mere
fikely to oceur. Also, because of the significant changes we experienced as a result of the expiration of our contractual relationship with
Microsoft’s MSN in the first quarter of 2004, i is extremely difficult to evaluate our business and prospects. You should evalaate our business
in Hght of the risks, uncertainties, expenses, delays and difficulties associated with managing and growing a relatively new business, many of
which are beyond our control.

Our gtock price may fluctuate, and you may not be able to sell your shaves for a profit, as a result of a number of factors including:

»  changes in the market valuations of Internet companies in general and comparable companies in particular,

»  guarterly fluctuations in our operating results,

. the termination or expiration of our distribution agreements,

»  our potential failure to meet our forecasts or analyst expectations on a quarterly basis,

»  the relatively thinly traded volume of our publicly traded shares, which means that small changes in the volume of trades may have
a disproportionate impact on our stock price,

. the loss of key personnel, or our inability to recruit experienced personnel to fill key positions,

»  changes i ratings or financial estimates by analysts or the inclusion/removal of our stock from certain stock market indices used to
drive invesiment cholces,

» amnouncements of new distribution network partnerships, technological innovations, acquisitions or products or services by us or
our competitors,

»  the sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market by our stockholders, or the perception that such saleg
could oeeur,

s  the exchange by Chess Depositary loterest (CDI) holders of CHHs for shares of common stock at a ratio of 111, and resale of such
shares in the Nasdag National Market {as of March 9, 2007, the CDis registered for trading on the Australian Stock Exchange were
exchangeable into an aggregate of approximately 1.4 million shares of common stock), or

»  conditions or trends in the Internet that suggest a decline in 1ates of growih of adverlising-based Internet companies.

In the past, securities class action litigation hay often been instituted after periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s

securities. A securities clags action sull againgt us could result in substantial costs and the diversion of management’s attention and resources,

regardless of the merits or outcome of the case.
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We may need additional capital in the future to support our operations and, if such additional financing is not available to us, on
reasonable terms or af all, our liquidity and results of operations will be materially and adversely impacted

Although we believe that our working capital will provide adeguate Hquidity to fund our operations and meet our other cash requirements
for the foreseeable future, unanticipated developments in the short term, such as the entry inte sgreements which require large cash payments
or the acquisition of businesses with negative cash flows, may necessitate additional financing. We may seek to raise additional capital through
public or private debt or equily financings in order to:

. fund the additional operations and capital expenditures,

»  take advantage of favorable business opportunities, including geographic expansion or acquisitions of complementary businesses or
technologies,

»  develop and upgrade our technology infrastructure beyond current plans,
. develop new product and service offerings,
»  take advantage of favorable conditions in capital markets, or

s respond to competitive pressures.

The capital markets, and in particular the public equity market for lnternet companies, have historically been volatile. it is difficult to
predict when, if at all, it will be possible for Internet companies to raise capital through these markets. We cannot assure you that the additional
financing will be available on ferms favorable to us, or at all. ¥ we issue additional equity or convertible debt securities, our existing
stockholders may experience substantial dilution.

Provisions of Delaware corporatfe law and provisions of our charfer and bylaws may discourage a takeover attempt

Our charter and bylaws and provisions of Delaware law may deter or prevent & takeover attempt, including an attempt that might result in
a premium over the market price for our common stock. Our board of directors has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock and to
determine the price, rights, preferences and restrictions, including voting rights, of those shares without any further vote or action by the
stockholders. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing desirable flexibiity in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate
purposes, could have the effect of making it more difficult for & third party to acquire & majority of our outstanding voting stock. In addition,
our charter and bylaws provide for a elassified board of directors. These provisions, along with Section 203 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, prohibiting certain business combinations with an interested stockholder, could discourage potential acquisition proposals
and could delay or prevent a change of control.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters are located in approximately 135,000 square feet of leased office space in San Franeisco, California. The {ease term for
this office space extends to October 15, 2009. The {ease provides us with an option to renew for two additional five-year pertods after the initial
term expires. We currently have three primary subtenants at our headquarters facility i San Francisco. We have subleased approximately
51,250 square feet of space through Octeber 2009 at a rate less than sur obligation under the original lease.
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In 2004, we also leased office space in London, Los Angeles, Melbourne, Montreal, New York, Svdoey and Tokyo. All of these office
{eases have expired and these branches were elosed in 2004 except for our Los Angeles office lease, which terminated and closed m 2003,
There is therefore no on-going cash reguirement for these facilities.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Cisneros v. Yahoo! Inc
On August 3, 2004, Mario Cisneros and Michael Voight filed & private attorney general lawsuit on behalf of a proposed class in Superior
Court in San Francisco County, California. The complaint names thirfeen scarch engines or web publishers as defendants, including us, and
alleges unfair business practices, unlawlul business practices, and other causes of action in connection with the display of advertisements from
Internet gambling companies. The complaint seeks restitution, unspecified compensatory demages, declaratory and injunctive relief, and
attorneys” fees. Plaintiffs also filed a motion for preliminary injunction on August 3, 2004,

On January 3, 2005, we filed & demurcer to the complaint, which was overruled on January 27, 2005, On January 3, 2005, we also filed a
motion to strike certain allegations regarding claims for restitution, which was dented in part and granted in part on May 9, 2003, We filed an
answer to the complaint on February 28, 2003, consisting of a general denial of all sllegations. On October 11, 2003, the court conducied a trial
on two of our affirmative defenses. The court held that California public policy bars the plaintiffs from receiving a portion of their requesied
damages.

On December 2, 2003, plainiiffy filed a renewed motion for a preliminary injunction. Defendants responded on or sround February 27,
2006, The court allowed certam discovery to proceed with respect to plaintiffs’ renewed motion. On or about May 23, 2006, plainiiffs were
granted leave to amend their complaint te name additional plaintiffs. On or about September 8, 2006, plaintiffs served an amended complaint
naming addittonal plaintiffs. The Company has since filed a general denial 1o the amended complaint. A Case Management Conference was
held on January 3, 2007, At the Conference, the court stayed plaintiffs” pending discovery requests and ordered additional briefing on two legal
issues. A hearing on the issues is scheduled for April 13, 2007,

Lane’'s Gifts and Collectibles, LL.C., v. Yahoo! Inc

On March 14, 2003 we were served with the Second Amended Complaint in a class action lawsuit in the Circuit Court of Miller County,
Arkansas. The complaint names eleven search engines and web publishers as defendants, including us, and alleges breach of contract,
restitution/unjust enrichment/money had and recetved, and civil congpiracy claims in connection with contracts allegedly entered into with
praintiffs for Internet pay-per-click advertising. The named plaintiffs on the Second Amended Complaint are Lane’s Gifts and Collectibles,
L1.C., U.S. Citizens for Fair Credit Card Terms, Ine., Savings 4 Merchants, Inc., and Max Caulfield d/b/s Caulficld Investigations.

On March 30, 2003 the case was removed to United States District Court for the Western District of Arkansas. On April 4, 2003 plaintiffy
.8, Citizens for Fair Credit Card Terms, Inc. and Savings 4 Merchantg, loe. filed a motion of voluntary dismissal without prejudice. The
motion was granted on April 7, 2005, Plaintiffs Lane’s Gifts and Collectibles, L.L.C. and Max Caulfield d/va Caulfield investigations filed a
motion to remand the case to state court on April 13, 2003, which was granted in June 2005, In July 2003, defendants, including us, petitioned
the Eighth Crreuit Court of Appeals for an appeal of the remand order, and moved to stay the proceedings while the appeal was pending. The
petition was denied on September 8, 2005 and the case was remanded to the Circuit Court of Miller County, Arkansas. We were served with
discovery requests on October 7, 2005, We have filed and/or joined motions to dismiss on the basis of failure to state a claim apon which relief
can be granted, lack of personal jurisdiction, and improper venue. Pursuant to the cowrt’s initial
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scheduling order, plaitiffs had until January 27, 2006 to respond to the motions to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction and improper
venue; and until June 9, 2006 to respond to the motion to dismiss on the basis of failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.
However, the court entered an order staying all proceedings for a period of 60 days on January 9, 2006. On March 8, 2006, the court entered an
order extending the stay until March 31, 2006. On April 1, 2006, the Court further extended the stay until April 20, 2006, On April 20, 2006,
the Court preliminarily approved a class settlement among plaintiffy, defendant Google, Inc., and certain defendants who display Google
adverlisements on their networks (the “Google Setilement”}. The Google Seitlement purports to release Google of all claims and also purports
to release certain defendants, including us, for any claims associated with the display of Gooegle advertisements on their networks. On July 24
and 25, 2006, the court had a final I settfement heari ing on the Google Settlement, and on July 26, 2006 the Court approved the settlement. On
April 21, 2006, the Cowrt ordered the remaining defendants, including us, to mediation and further stayed the proceedings to June 21, 2006.
The Court further extended the Stay as to us until August 16, 2006. The parties thereafter stipulated that the stay would remain in effect while
the parties continue to comply with the Court’s order regarding medtation. On January 10, 2007, the Court further extended the stay until

May 1, 2007.

We are also involved from time to time in various legal proceedings arising from the normal course of business activities. Although the
results of litigation and claims cannot be predicied with certainty, we do not expect resolution of these matters to have a material adverse
fmpact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position. However, an unfavorable resolution of a matter could,
depending on its amount and timing, materially affect our future results of operations, cash flows or financial position in a future period.
Regardiess of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense costs, diversion of management resources and other
factors.

Additionally, pursuant to Section 17.06A(e) of the [nternal Revenue Code we note that we have not been required to pay a penalty to the

Internal Revenue Service for tathng to make disclosures required with respect to certain transactions that have been identified by the IRS ag
abusive or that have a significant tax aveidance purpose.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKIHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
LookSmart, Lid. common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “LO0OK”. Chess Depositary Interests, or
CHs, which are freely exchangeable with shares of common stock at a ratio of 111, are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange under the
symbol “LOK”. The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of the common stock on the Nasdaq National Market for
¢ach period indicated adjusted to reflect, for all periods shown, the effect of a one-for-five reverse stock split which became effective at the
close of business on October 26, 2005:

First quazier $10.55 $4.00

Fourth quarter $ 5.09 $2.78

First quarter (through March 9, 2007) $ 5.38 $4.26

LookSmart had approximately 156 helders of record of common stock as of March 9, 2007. We have not declared or paid any cash
dividends on the common stock and presently intend to retain our future carnings, if any, to fund the development and growih of our business
and, therefore, do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Information sbout our outstanding stock options, weighted average exercise prices, and number of stock options available for future
grant, under both stockholder-approved stock plang and non-stockholder-approved stock plans is included in our proxy statement for the 2007
annual meeting of stockholders, and 1s hereby incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Uses of Proceeds from Registered Securities

We had no sales of unregistered securities in 2005 and 2006,

In 2084, we sold and issued the following unregistered securitios:

{1y On April 22, 2004, in connection with the scquisition of the Net Nanny business assets of BioNet, LLC, we issued to BioNet
LLC an aggregate of 394,477 shares of common stock.

{23 On July 29, 2004, in connection with the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Furl, LLC, we tssued to Furl, LLC an
aggregate of 107,209 shares of common stock.

There were no underwriters employed i connection with any of the foregoing transactions. The issuances of securities described above
were deemed to be exempt from registration under the Seeurities Act i reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and/or Regulation D,
hereunder, as transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering. The recipients of securities in each such transaction acquired the
securities for investment only and not in connection with any distribution thereof and appropriate legends were affixed to the share certificates
and other instruments issued i such transactions. All recipients etther recetved adeguate information about the Registrant or had access,
through employment or other relationships, to such information.
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total siockholder return on LookSmart commeon stock to the Nasdag Stock Market (U.S.)
Index and RDG loternet Composite index. The graph covers the period from December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006. The graph
agsumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2001 in LookSmart common stock and in cach imdex, and that all dividends were reinvested.
LookSmart has not paid or declared any cash dividends on its common stock. Stockholder retums over the indicated period should not be
considered indicative of futwre stockholder returns.
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The dollar values for total stockholder return plotted in the graph above are shown in the table below:

Cumslagive Totat Return

12/61 12/62 12/03 12104 12165 12166

The information provided in the graph and table above is presented giving effect to the one-for-five stock split of the Company’s common
stock effected on October 26, 2005.
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ITEM 6. SELECTEDCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations” included elsewhere in (s report.

Year Ended December 3,
2006 205 20114 20063 2002

8 Ineludes the impact of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R |, “Share-Based Payment.” For additional information,
refer to Foolnote 10 {Stockholders’ Equity) to our Consolidated Financtal Statements under “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data.”

December M,

Cash, cash equivalents and short and long-term invesiments $41.136 $51,367 $ 63,900 $ 69,934 $ 51,264

Total siockholders’ equity $57.549 $68,451

*  Ingome (loss} from continuing operations included a restructuring charge (benefit) of the following amounis:
» $¢0.3) mitlion in 2006,
» $1.0 million in 2003,
» $4.2 million in 2004,
» $4.0 million in 2003,
* Income (lossy from continuing operations included our share of jomt venture income (losses) of the following amounts:
» $03.2 million in 2006,
» $¢0. 1y million in 20604,
» $¢0.6) mitlion in 20603,
» ${3.7ymitlion in 20602.
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* In 2003, net income included an extraordinary gain from the purchase of joint venture entities of $0.2 million.
* In 2002, income from continuing operations included a gain from the extinguishment of debi of $32.6 million.

#*  Per share amounts have been retroactively adiusted for the effects of the one-for-five reverse stock split effected i October 2005,

Int the first quarter of 2004, we signed agreements to sell certain of the assets and activities of our Australian, British and Japanese
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the sclected consolidated financial data set forth above has been recast to remove the results of those international
operations from continuing operations for all periods presented. Results of the international operations are included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, as presented in Hem 8, herein, in the separate line ftem gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, for all periods
presented. For further information, see Note 16 (Discontinued Operations) in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The foliowing discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes fo those statements
that appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 274 of the Securifies Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We use words such as “believes,” “intends,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “plans,” “may, " "will " and similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements. Discussions comtaining forward-looking
statements may be found in the material set forth under “Business, " “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations " and in other sections of the report. Al forward-looking statements, including, but not Himited to, projections,
expectations or estimates concerning owr business, including demand for our products and services, mix of revenue sources, ability to control
and/or reduce operating expenses, anficipated gross marging and operating results, cost savings, product development efforts, general outlook
of our business and indusiry, future profits or losses, competitive pasition, share-based compensation, and adeguate lguidity to fund our
aperations amd meet our other cush requirements, are inherently uncertuin as they ure based on our expeciations and assumpiions concerning
future events. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous known and unknawn risks and uncertainties. You should not place
undue relionce on these forward-looking statements. Our actual results could differ materially from those enticipated in the forward-looking
stutements for many reasons, including but not imited to, the possibility that we may fuil to preserve owr expertise in online advertising,
consumer website and social bookmarking product developmeni, the possibility that existing and potenfial distribution partners may opt {0
work with, or favor the products of, competitors if our competitors offer more favorable products or pricing terms, we may be unable to grow
sources of revenue other thun our listings revenue, we may be unable to increase growth in ouwr owned-and-operated sites, we may be unable w
license compelling content at reasonable casts, we may be unable to attain or muintain customer accepiance of our publisher services
products, changes in the distribution network composition may lead to decreases in traffic volumes, we may be unable to maintain or improve
aur mateh rate, average revenue per click, conversion rate or other advertiser metrics, we may be unable t achieve operating profitability, we
may be unable to attract and retain key personnel, we may have unexpected increases in costs and expenses, and the other risks described
above in the section entitled "Risk Fuctors " (Hem 14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K) and elsewhere in this vepors. Al forward-looking
stutements in this report are made as of the date herveof, based on information available to us as of the date hereof, and except as required by
applicable luw, we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking siatemenis.

AH share and per share information provided in this Anmual Report is presented giving effect 1o the one-for-five reverse stock split of our
common stock effected on Ociober 26, 2005
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

LookSmart is an online advertising and techoology company that provides relevant solutions for advertisers, publishers and consumers,
LookSmumt offers advertisers targeted, pay-per-click (PPC) search advertising and banners via 2 monitored ad distribution network; a
customizable set of private-label solutions for publishers; and consumer websites and web tools.

The Company’s extensive ad distribution network includes proprictary websites, syndicated publishers and search partners. The
Company’s appHcation programming interface (API} enables adveriisers and agencies to connect any type of marketing or reporting software
with minimal effort, for casier access and management of ad campaigns.

LookSmumt’s publisher solutions consist of a hosted, white-labeled AdCenter for Publishers to help monetize website trafiic and foster
small and large advertiser relationships and Furl for Publishers, a social bookmarking tool to merease site traffic.

For consumers, the Company’s vertical search sites and web tools offer essential search results with the ability to find, save and share
articles and other web content.

Critical Accounting Polieies and Estimates

Our financial condition and results of operations are based upon certain critical accounting policies, which include estimates,
assumptions, and judgments on the part of management. These estimates, judgments and assumpiions can affect the reported amounts of assets
and Habilities as of the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented.
The following discussion highlights those policies and the underlying estimates and assumptions, which we consider critical 1o an
understanding of the {inencial information m this report.

Revenue Recagnition
Online Advertising

Our online adverlising revenue is primarily composed of per-click fees that we charge customers. Customers set the per-click fee charged
for inclusion-targeted listings when thenr account is established. The per-click fee charged for keyword-targeted listings is calealated based on
the results of online bidding on keywords or page content, up to a maximum cost per keyword or page content set by the custoemer. Revenue
also captures impresston-based revenue from banner advertisements, as well as revenue share from licensing of private-labeled versions of our
products,

Revenues associated with online advertising products, including Advertiser Solutions, FindArticles, our other consumer sites, and banner
advertisements are generally recognized once collectibility is established, delivery of services has oceurred, all performance obligations have
been satisfied, and no refund obligations exist. We pay distribution network partners based on chicks on the advertiser’s ads that are displayed
on the websites of these distribution network parters. These payments are called traffic acquisition costs and are included in cost of revenues.
In sccordance with Emerging lssues Task Force lssue No. 99-19, Reporiing Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Net as an Agent { “EITE 99-
19", the revenue derived from these arrangements that involve traffic supplied by distribution network partners is reported gross of the
payment to the distribution network partners. This revenue 18 reported gross due to the fact that we are the primary obligor to the advertisers
who are the customers of the advertising service.

Affiliate revenue is included in online advertising revenue and is based on commissions received for participation in affiliate programs.
Affiliate programs are programs operated by affiliate network services or
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online merchants, in which merchants pay traffic providers on a cost-per-scquisition basis. By participating in affiliate programs, we generate
revenue when [nfernet consumers make a purchase from a participating merchant’s website after clicking on the merchant’s Hsting in our
search results. Revenues from affiliates are carned on & per-sale basis or as a percentage of sales rather than a per-click basis. Revenue 18
recognized in the period in which a merchant finalizes & sale and reports to us via our affiliate network.

We also enter into agreements to provide private-labeled versions of our products, meluding the AdCenter for Publishers. These
arrangements melude multiple clements, primarily revenue-sharing based on the publishers” customers” monthly revenue generated through the
AdCenter application, as well as upfront fees, and license foes. We recognize revenue in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statemenis (“SAB 1047}, and Financial Accounting Standards Board
Emerging Issues Task Foree No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (“EITF 00-217). We recognize upfront fees over the
term of the arrangement or the expected period of performance, license fees over the term of the Heense, and revenue-sharing portions over the
period i which such revenue 1s earned. in all cases, revenue 1s recognized only when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, the service 1s performed, and collectibility of the resulting recetvable s reasonably assured.

We provide a provision agamst revenue for estimated reductions resulting from billing adjustments and customer refunds. The amounts of
these provisions are evaluated periodically based upon customer experience and historical trends.

Deferred revenue s recorded when payments are received in advance of performance r underlying agreements. Customer deposits are
recorded when customers make prepayments for online advertising.

Licensing

Revenues assoctated with our former licensing agreement with Microsofi were recognized in the period in which URLs were added to the
database and the database was delivered to Microsoft. We did not recognize any Heense revenue related to Microsofl in 2005 and 2006,

Alowance for Doubtful Accounts

Determination of collectibility of payments requires significant judgment on the part of management and includes performing initial and
ongoing credit evaluations of customers. We maitain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated fosses resulting from the failure of our
customers to make required payments. This valuation allowance 1s reviewed on a periodic basis to determine whether a provision or reversal 1¢
required. The review 15 based on factors including the application of historical collection rates to current receivables. We will record 2
reduction of our allowance for doubtful accounts if there is a significant improvement in collection rates or cconomic conditions are more
favorable than we anticipated. Additional allowances for doubtful accounts may be required if there is deterioration in past due balances, if
¢eonomic conditions are less favorable than we anticipated or for customer-specific circumstances, such as bankruptey. Management’s
fudgment is required in the periodic review of whether a provision or reversal 18 warranted.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We have recorded goodwill and intangible assets in connection with our business acquisitions. Managemont exercises judgment in the
assessment of the related useful lives, fair value and recoverability of these assets. The majority of intangible assets are amortized over three to
seven years, the period of expected benefit. Goodwill 1s not amortized. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, Goodwilf and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427), we periodically re-asgoss the valuation and asset lives of intangible assets to
conform fo changes in management’s estimates of future performance. Management considers existing and anticipated competitive and
¢eonomic conditions in such assessments. Goodwill 18 reviewed for impairment at
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least annually and as a result of any event that significantly changes our business. The Company uses market capitalization, as well as cash
flow forecasts and other market value indicators to review goodwill for impairment. Cash flow forecasts used in evaluation of goodwill are
based on trends of historical performance and management’s estimate of future performance.

Deferred Taxes

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financizgl statement carrying values and the tax bases
of assets and liabilities. We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverability and establish a valaation aHowance based on historical
taxable income, projected future taxable income, and the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences. H we operate ata
{oss or are unable to gencerate sufficient future taxable income, or if there is a material change in the actual effective tax rates or time period
within which the underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductible, we could be required to increase the valuation allowance
against all or a significant portion of our deferred tax assets which could substantially increase our effective tax rate for such period.
Alternatively, if our future taxable income is significantly higher than cxpected and/or we are able to uttlize our tax credits, we may be required
to reverse all or a significant part of our valuailon allowance sgainst such deferred tax assets which could substantially reduce our effective tax
rate for such pericd. Therefore, any significant changes in statutory fax rates or the amount of our valuation allowance could have a material
impact on the value of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, and our reported financial results.

Internal Use Software Development Costs

We account for internal use software in accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants {“AICPA™) Statement of
Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use (“SOP 98-17). In accordance with
the capitalization criteria of SOP 98-1, we have capitalized external dircet costs of materials and services consumed in developing and
obtaining internal-use computer software and the payroll and payroll-related costs of employees who devote time Lo the internal-use computer
software project.

Management’s judgment is required in determining the point at which various projects enter the stages at which costs may be capitalized,
in assessing the ongoing value of the capitalized costs, and in determining the estimated useful lives over which the costs are amortized. We
expect to continue to mvest in internally developed software and to capitalize costs in accordance with SOP 98-1.

Restructuring Charges

We have recorded a restructuring accrual related to closing certain leased facilities in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146, Accounting jor Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal of Activitdes (“SFAS 146”). Management’s judgment 1s required
when estimating when the redundant facilities will be subleased and at what rate they will be subleased.

Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Finaneial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 20043 (“SFAS 123R™),
Shure-Based Payment , which revised SFAS 123, dccounting for Stock-Based Compensation . SFAS 123R requires all share-based payment
transactions with employees, including granis of employee stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan to be recogmized as compensation expense over the requisite service period based on their relative fair values. SFAS 123R 18 a
new and very complex accounting standard, the application of which requires significant judgment and the use of estimates, particularly
surrounding Black-Scholes assumptions such as stock price volatility and expected option lives, as well as expected option forleiture rates, to
valu¢ equity-based compensation. SFAS 123R
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reguires the recognition of the fair value of stock compensation in net income {loss). In connection with the adoption of SFAS 123R, stock-
based compensation expense of approximately $2.3 million was recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006 assoctated with the fair value and initial vesting of employee stock options granted and employee stock purchases related to
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan during the pertod. There was no cumulative ¢ffect of adoption. For additional information refer to Footnote
10 {Stockholders’ Equity) to our Consolidated Financial Statements under “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a description of recent accounting pronouncements, see Note | (Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financizl Statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of 2006

Revenues for 2006 were $48.7 mullion, with a net loss of $13.7 million. The followmyg developments during 2006 were key to our

business:

» Growing our ad network,  Total paid clicks for the year-ended December 31, 2006 were 365.5 million compared to 306 4 million
during the same period of 2003, an increase of 19%. On a year-to-year basis, owr average revenue per click (“RPC™) for 2006 was
$0.11 compared to $0.12 in the same period of 2005. Qur average RPC began to decline ag we added a low priced Run-of-Site
adverlising product in the third quarter of 2005 that helps us generate revenue from our ad network more quickly. We continue to
drive growth and efficiency through our ongeing ad network optimization efforts as well as growih in our advertiser base.

o  Developing syndicated solutions for publishers.  We continued to focus on improving our private-labeled AdCenter for
Publishers, providing web search, and providing a tailored version of our Furl online book marking system for publishers. We
obtained 9 new AdCenter for Publisher customers during 2006.

s Focusing on developing a consumer audience.  We leveraged our core expertise in directories, database structures, algorithmic
searches and communities by integrating Furl and other LookSmart technologies to provide a compelling environment for both
customers and advertisers. We focused on aggregating these, and newly developed or Heensed products, to provide a compelling
user experience on the web to allow users to find, save and share articles and other web content and links to them.

Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

20306 Change HOS Change 26054
o

Online Advertising
Outline advertising revenues are derived from Advertiser Solutions, Publisher Solutions, and Consumer Sites sources. Revenues from
Advertiser Solations increased in 2006 by approximately $1.4 million, primarily as a result of increased volume of total paid clicks,
365.5 million in 2006 as compared 306.4 million in 2005, In 2006, average RPC declined to $6.11 per click, from $0.12 por click for 2005, The
decline in average RPC is primarily due to an increase tn low-RPC advertisers during 2006, as compared to 2005, as & result of the intreduction
of a
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new Run-of-Site advertising product during Q3 2005, In 2005, we began removing low-converting traffic from our distribution network.
During this time, our RPC decreased as advertisers were less willing to pay our previous rates for low-quality traffic.

In Q3 2003 we launched the AdCenter for Publishers, which is the primary source of our revenues from our Publisher Solutions, which
coniributed to the approximately $4.5 million increase in revenues during 2006.

Revenues from our Consumer Sites are driven by our FindArticles product. 1o 2006, revenues from our Consumer Sites mereased to
$4.2 million from $2.9 mullion in 2003, This increase was primarily due to revised strategic positioning of our advertisement banners, as well
as our text advertisemenis through third party ad serving.

In 2005, online advertising revenue primartly decreased as compared to 2004, as a result of the cHmination of low converting traflic as
we continued our efforts to improve traffic quality and optimize traffic flow from our distribution network partners. Further, revenues also
decreased due to the winding down of sur distribution network partner agreement with Microsoft, which began in January of 2004, This
decrease was partially offset by a 94% increase in revenue from the sale of our consumer products, driven by our FindArticles product. In
2005, we improved our content, which subsequently increased page view and FindArticles revenue. We also began generating revenue from
our AdCenter for Publishers agreements during the second half of 2003, which further offset the overall decrease in revenue.

Prior to 2004 we exelusively licensed our database content to Microsoft and customized it for their use. Revenues from this agreement
were $188 thousand for 2004 and have been included in total revenues for reporting purposes.

Revenues for 2007 are expected to increase 20% to 25% compared to 2006 as a result of revenue growth across all three revenue sources.

Cost of Revenues

Your Ended December 31,
20056 Change HOS Chagge 2144
(in thoasands)

Percentape of advertiser solutions revenues

Percentage of total revenues 63% 67% 58%

During 2006, in accordance with SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee
Stock Purchase Program as share-based compensation expense which was meluded in our Conselidated Statements of Operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, approximately $13 thousand of share based compensation was included in cost of revenues.

Gross margin of 37% for the year ended December 31, 2006 was higher than gross margin of 33% for the same period in 2005, Traffic
acquisition costs, the costs paid to our distribution network partners, increased in 2006 compared to 2005, which coincides with our increase in
online advertising revenue.

Content costs represent amounts paid to license searchable content that is displayed on our network of ewned-and-operated consumer
sites. Content costs increased m 2006 as compared to 20035, due to higher content costs in 2006 caused by the overal] traffic increase on the
Company’s consumer sites.
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Other costs of Tevenues consist of connectivity costs, personnel costs of our operations employees ieluding share-based compensation,
equipment depreciation, expenses relating fo hosting advertising operations, commissions paid to advertising agencies and amortization of
intangible assets. These costs decreased in 2006 compared to the same pertod of 2005 primarily due to reduction in bank and credit card fees,
as well as a continuons, slight decline in connectivity costs of approximately $0.2 million resulting from cost efficiency efforts.

Traffic acquisttion costs, the costs paid to our distribution network partners, decreased n 2005 compared to 2004, which coincides with
our decrease in Advertiser Soluttons revenues. These costs increased as a percentage of Advertiser Solutions revenue as we began paying a
glightly higher revenue sharing percentage to our distribution network pariness for higher converting traffic.

In 2003, other costs of revenues mcluded content costs. In 2003, the increase In content costs, as compared to 2004, was due to an
increase i fees related to one of our FindArticles content providers.

In 2045, other costs were relatively consistent as compared to 2004,

We expeet gross margin to remain at approximately 42% to 44% throughout 2007 as improvements in revenue mix are expected to be
offset by slightly higher TAC levels throughout 2007.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consist of sales and marketing, product development, general and administrative, restructuring charges and share-
based compensation.

Sales and Morketing

¥ear Erded Pecember 31,
20056 Change 20055 Chiange 26054
(in thousands)

Percentage of total revenues %

During 2006, in accordance with SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee
Stock Purchase Program as share-based compensation expense which was imcluded in our Conselidated Statements of Operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, approximaiely 5266 thousand of share-based compensation was included in sales and marketing expenses.

Sales and marketing expenses include salaries, commissions, share-based compensation and other costs of employment for our sales
foree, sales administration and customer service staff and marketing personnel, overhead, factlities, allocation of depreciation and the provision
for and reductions of the allowance for doubtful trade receivables. Sales and marketing expenses also include the costs of advertising, trade
shows, public relations activities and various other activilies supporting our customer acquisition efforts.

Sales and marketing expenses increased in 2006 compared to 2003 primarily dug to increased advertising efforts of approximately $0.4
million and increased sales personnel related to efforts to obtain new advertising accounts and publisher customers of approximately $0.1
million. We acquired nine new publishers in 2006,

Sales and marketing expenses decreased in 2003 compared to 2004 primarily due to a reduction in hesdeount and therefore selaries and
benefits of approximately $1.4 million as a result of our restructuring activities in 2004, and lower commissions and bonuses due to the
deercase in revenues. The decrease was partiatly offset by an approximately $0.6 mitlion increase in marketing and promotional expenses in an
effort to drive consumers to our sites.
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In 2007 sales and marketing expenses are expected to stay relatively congistent with 2006 levels, as we support further investment in sales
and marketing.

Product Development

¥ear Erded December 31,
20056 Change HOS Chagge 2144
{in thousgads)

Other produet development costs 17,509 (5% 18,925 (19)%% 23,358

Percentage of total revenues 33% 44%% 30%

During 2006, in accordance with SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee
Stock Purchase Program as share-based compensation expense which was included in our Conselidated Statements of Operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, approximately $607 thousand of share-based compensation was included in product development expenses.

Product development expenses include all costs related to the continued development and enhancement of our core technology produets
such as the Ad Center for Publishers, Furlnet and FindArticles.com. These costs include salaries and associated costs of employment,
including share-based compensation, overhead, facilities and amortization of intangible assets. Costs related to the development of software for
internal use in the business, including salavies and associated costs of employment zre capitalized after certain milestones have been achieved.
Software Heensing and computer equipment depreciation related to supporting product development functions are also included in product
development expenses.

Capitalized software development costs inclade the costs to develop software for internal use, excluding costs associated with rescarch
and development, traming and testing. During 2006 compared to 2005, the increase in capitalized software development costs was due to more
work on the new version of the AdCenter implemented during May 2006. In addition, we developed projects to further enhance other core
assets, such ag Furl and vertical search technologies, associated with our network of owned-and-operated consumer sites. The adoption of
SEAS 123R also partially contributed to the increase in capitalized software costs.

The decrease in other product development expenses during 2006 compared to 2005 primarily relates to the decrease in depreciation and
amortization of approximaiely $1.0 million due to end of {ife for certain fixed assets, as well as lower facilities cost atlocations of
approximately 513 thousand. Facilities costs declined in 2003 due to an increase in acquisition of sub-tenants to offset rent expense. This is
partially offset by an inerease in temporary staffing costs to meet requirements of current development efforts.

During 20605 compared to 2004, the increase in capitalized development costs was due to projects related to developing our vertical sites
and our proprictary software platform for tracking and invoicing clicks, totaling approximately $0.9 million. Offsetting the inerease in
capitalized costs from 2005 to 2004 was a write down of previously captialized software of approximately $0.2 million during the third quarter
of 2005, These increases in 2005 compared to 2004 were partiatly outweighed by an approximate $06.8 million write down in 2004 of software
costs previously capitalized for projects that were cancelled in the second guarter of 2004, These projects were canceled because they were not
aligned with our future operating plan.

The deerease in other product development expenses during 2005 compared fo 2004 was due primarily to a reduction in salaries and
benefits of approximately $3.5 million as part of our restructuring activities in 2004, Further, allocations of overhead expenses, which are based
on headeount, decreased by approximately $0.8 million as headcount decreased 21% from December 31, 2004,
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I 2087, we expect both capitalized software development costs and other product development costs to stay relatively consistent with
2006 levels.

General and Administrative

Year Ended December 31,
G Change 2IHIS Change 203005
in thousands}

Percentage of total revenues 21% 19%; 12%

During 2006, in accordance with SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock options and employee stock purchases related to the Employee
Stock Purchase Program as share-based compensation expense which was included in our Conselidated Statements of Operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, approximately 51,436 thousand of share-based compensation was included i general and administrative expenses.

General and administraiive expenses mclude costs of executive management, human resources, finance, legal and facilities personnel.
These costs include salaries and associated costs of employment, meluding share-based compensation, overhead, facilities and an sllocation of
depreciation. General end administrative expenses also include legal, insurance, tax and accounting, consulting and professional service fees.

The increase in general and administrative expenses during 2006 compared to 20035 was primarily driven by an approximate $0.9 million
increase i labor costs due to various staffing reguirements and share-based compensation costs.

General and administrative expenses decreased for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended December 31, 2004
primarily from rencgotiating certain of our insurance policies, which resulted in a cost savings of approximately $0.7 million in 2003, Also,
salaries decreased by approximately $0.3 million from 2003 to 2004 as a result of non-restructuring separation payments. These payments were
approximately $0.2 million in 2005 compared to approximately $6.5 million in 2004. We also had decreases related to employee benefits and
payrol] taxes of approximately $0.2 million and & loss on disposal of assets in 2004 of approximately $0.3 million. The total decrease in general
and administrative expenses was partially outweighed by an increase in legal fees of approximately $6.3 million related to outstanding
litigation, patent applications and legal fees related to our reverse stock split.

In 2007, we oxpect general and admimistrative expenses to stay relatively consistent with 2006 levels.
Restructuring Charges

Year Ended December 31,
21HM Chagge 20055 Change 2014

R

Percentage of total revenues (1%

Emplayee Severance Costs
In November 2003, we implemented a restructuring plan to eliminate 77 positions in the United States due to the loss of the ongoing
business agreement with Microsoft. The severance charges associated with the reduction in force were approximately $0.8 million. In the first
and second quarters of 2004, we eliminated an additional 43 positions in the United States, which included a reduction in our sales force of 11
positions, a
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reduction in our general and administrative departments of five positions, a reduction in our product development department of 14 posiiions
and a reduction in our editorial team of 13 positions. This reduction resulted in approsimately $1.0 millon restructuring charges recognized in
2004 and 1s meluded in operating expenses on the Conselidated Statement of Operations. All employee severance costs were patd by
December 31, 2004, No additional restructuring charges related to employee severance costs were incurred in 2003 and 2006.

Lease Restructuring Costs
In connection with the restructuring activities noted above, we incurred costs related to closing of redundant leased facilities in 2003 and
2004, including a charge of approximately $3.2 million in the first quarter of 2004.

During the first half of 2005, we had limited success in subleasing our unused space since the establishment of the restruciuring Hability,
and we modified our original estimates. This resulted in additional restructuring charges of approximately $1.9 million in the second quarter of
2003, reflecting the reduced probability of subleasing the available space. However in October 2003, we exccuted an agreement to sublease an
additional portion of the unused space. A further reduction of the restructuring lisbility of approximately $0.6 million was recorded in the
fourth guarter of 2005 based on an agreement with a new sublessee, which was executed i February 2006,

Inn the fourth quarter of 2006 we recorded & restructuring benefit of approximately $290 thousand related to the extension of sublease
arrangements for portions of our additional unused space.

The lease restructuring liability is amortized using the interest method through the life of the lease, which terminates in 2009,
Non-Operating Ineome (Expense)
Interest and Gther Non-Operating Income, net

Year Ended December 31,

2IHIG Change 2035 Change 2144

Share of joint venture income (loss} $ 165 H00% b {1006 5(11 3}:

Other income {expense}, net includes foreign exchange gains and losses, realized gains or losses on investments, and other non-operating
items. In 2006, other income decreased primarily due to & decrease in foreign exchange. In 2005, we recovered $137 thousand of previously
written off receivables, which caused the oversll increase in other income (expense), net.

Interest income includes income from our cash, cash equivalents and investments. The increase in 2006 from 2005 was primarily due to
higher overall interest rates earned by our mvestment portfolio. The increase m 2005 from 2004 was due to higher overall interest rates camed
by our investment portfolio.

Interest expense primarily includes interest due on our note payable and was comparable for 2006, 2005, and 2004,

We own 50% of the equity shares of BT LookSmart, Ltd., a Bermuda company that is a joint venture with British Telecommunications.
We recognized a share of joint venture income of $165 thousand in the fourth quarter of 2006 due to the settlement of certain prior claims. We

expect that we will record income or loss from our share of the joint venture as 1 moves to finalize its wind-down activities in 2007,

31



Table of Contents

Income Tax Expense

Yeuar Ended December 31

28056 Change 20055 Change 2114
in fhousands

The effective tax rate in upeoming years and for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2006 may vary due to a variety of factors, including, but
not limited to, the relative income contribution by tax jurisdiction, changes in statutory tax rates and any non-deductible items related to
acquisitions of other non-recurring charges.

During 2006, 2003, and 2004, we incurred a net loss. We recorded mimmum state income tax expense of approximately $4,800 and
$2.000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in 2603 from 2004 was a result of revisions to estimated 2003 taxes recorded in 2004,
primarily relating to federal alternative mimimum ax.

Gain {(Loss) from Discontinued Operations, net of fax

Year Ended December 3§,

G Chunge 2IHIS Chunge 26054

In January 2004, we agreed to sell cortain of the assets of our Australian subsidiary, and related inteHectual property rights, to a
subsidiary of Telsira Corporation Limited for approximately $0.7 million. In March 2004, we agreed to sell certain of the assets of our Japanese
subsidiary, and related inteHectual property rights to Value Commerce for approximately $0.7 million. Alse in March 2004, we agreed to sell
certain assets of our British subsidiary, and the related intellectual property rights to Crystal for approximately $0.1 million. The gain on
disposal of the operations of $1.0 million recorded n 2004 is shown net of $0.4 million for transitional expenses.

We recorded an additional gain of $6.1 million in 2003 as a result of addittonal disposal activities and an increased tax benefit.

I August 2006, we completed the liquidation of our German subsidiary and incurred a loss of $31 thousand on disposal of this
subsidiary.

Revenue and pretax net income (loss} from the discontinued interationsl operations (excluding gain on disposal), previously included in
the online advertising segment of the business, reported in discontinued operations were as follows {in thousands):

Year Ended Becember 31
206 05 204

Pretax income from discontinued operations in 2004 includes approximately $0.4 million related to the reduction of the allowance for
doubtful accounts in the second guarter of 2004, as substantislly al accounts were collected in certain locations, and approximately $1.7
million related to the disposition and write down of certain nternationsl assets and the reduction of estimated lisbilities in 2004, offset by
expenses related to the operations

32



Table of Contents

of the entities during the periods and the reversal of cumulative translation adjustments of $0.4 million related to both the United Kingdom and
Japan, which had been substantially Hquidated as of December 31, 2004, As we finalize the Hquidation process of our Australian subsidiary, we
expect to record additional income related to the reversal of the cumulative translation adiustment of $0.5 milkion in 2007, We also expect that
we will record additional mimor amounts relating to the finalization of the liquidation of various foreign operations in 20407,

Liguidity and Capital Resources

The following table presents our cash flows provided by {used in) operating, investing and financing activities for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 {in thousands}.

Year ended Year ended Year ended

Our primary source of cash is receipts from revenues. The primary uses of cash are labor costs (salaries, benefits, and other employee
compensation), gencral operating expenses (office rent, vtilities, nsurance and supplies), payments to distribution network partners related to
traffic acquisition and content costs associated with our consumer sites, and professional services fees related to legal and audit costs. We
ended 2006 with $41.2 million in cash, cash equivalents, and short and long-term investments, a decrease of $16.1 million from $51.3 million
at December 31, 2005,

The decrease in cash used in operating activities in 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily due to the decrease in net loss of $34.1 million, a
decrease in cash pald for accrued lisbilities of $2.5 million and a decrease in depreciation and amortization of $1.5 million, offset by an
increase in accounts receivable due to increased revenues and a shift from self-service customers 1o managed customers. Managed service
customers have a dedicated account manager and therefore are invoiced. Self-service customers are supported by a customer service feam and
make payments with credit cards. Managed service accounts represented less than 50% of revenues at the beginning of 2006, and more than
50% of revenues by the end of 2006. During 2005, net cash used in operations increased $0.7 million from 2004. A net loss of $17.8 million in
2005 compared to a net loss of $9.6 million in 2004 was the primary reason for the increase. Further, a decrease in revenues caused a
corresponding decrease i cash paid for acerued labilities of $15.6 million primarily due to lower aceruals for partner payments related to cost
of revenues.

Net cash provided by investing activities in 2006 of $5.6 mitlion resulted primarily from the maturities of invesiments of $20.2 million,
partially offset by purchases of short-term investments of $9.5 million and long-term frvestments of $1.0 nullion. Farther, we purchased
equipment and capitalized costs related to internally developed software of $4.1 million compared to $3.9 million fn 2005. In 2005 compared to
2004, net cash used n investing activities deereased $15.6 million primarily due to the proceeds from the sale of shori-term investments of $9.9
million.

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2006 of $0.2 million resulted primarily from the proceeds related to our employee stock plans
of $0.2 million, which remained relatively constant from 2005, We also made payments against cur outstanding note payable of approximately
$53 thousand. 1n 20035, net cash provided by financing activities decreased $4.5 mitlion primartly due to a decrease in proceeds from our
employee stock plans of $4.5 million.

We have outstanding standby {etters of credit {(“SBLC”} related to security of building leases and security for payroll processing services
of $1.1 million at December 31, 2006. The SBLC contains two financtal covenants. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with all
reguired covenants.
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While we expect cash to decrease in 2607, we believe that our working capital will provide adeqguate liguidity to fund our operations and
meet other cash reguirements for at least the next 12 months. We may seck to raise additional capital through public or private debt or eguity
financings in order to fund our operations and capital expenditures, take advantage of favorable business opportunities, develop and upgrade
our technology infrastructure, develop new product and service offerings, take advantage of favorable conditions in capital markets or respond
to competitive pressures. In addition, unanticipated developments in the short-term, such as the entry into agreements requiring large cash
payments or the acquisition of businesses with negative cash flows, may necessitate additional financing. We cannot be certain that additional
financing will be available on ferms favorable to us, or at all. ¥ we issue additional equity or convertible debt securities, our existing
stockholders may experience substantial dilution.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, investments in special-purpose entities or undisclosed borrowings or debt.
Additionally, we are not a party to any derivative contracts or synthetic leases.

Contractual Obligations and Commereial Commitments

We newr various contractual obligations and commercial commitments in our normal course of business. The following table
summarizes our significant contractual ebligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2006, and the effect such obligations are
expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future pertods (in thousands):

Less than

Tuogad 1 year 3 vears 5 year ‘horeatier

Total 514,597 $ 5,206 59,301

Indemnification

During the normal course of business, we have made certain guarsntees, indemnities and commitments under which we may be required
to make payments in refation to certain transactions. These indemaities include inteHeetual property and other indemnities to our customers and
disirtbution network partners in connection with the sales of our products, and indenmnities to various lessors in connection with facility leases
for certain ¢laims arising from such facility or lease. Further, we have agreements whereby we mdemnify our officers and directors for certain
events or occurrences while the officer or director 1s, or was, serving, at our reguest, in such capacity, to the maximum extent permitted under
the laws of the State of Delaware. The maximum potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under these
indemmification agreements is unlimited. However, we maintain directors and officers insurance coverage that may contribute, up to certain
{imits, a porticn of any future amounts paid for indemnification of directors and officers. We believe the estimated fair value of these
indemnification agreements in excess of applicable insurance coverage {8 minimal. Historically, we have not incurred any losses or recorded
any Habilities related to performance under these types of indemnities.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTIFATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for interest rate changes relates primarily to our cash equivalents, short-term and long-term investments. We
had no derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2006 or 2005, We tnvest our excess cash i debt and equity instruments of high-
guality corporate issuers with original maturities greater than three months and effective maturities 1ess than two years. The amount of eredit
exposure to any one issue, issuer and type of mnstrument 1s limited. These securities are subject to interest rate visk and vary in value as market
interest rates fluctuate. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the effects of changes in interest rates on the fair market value of our
marketable investment securities and our earnings were not material. Further, we believe that the impact on the fair market value of our
securities and our carnings from a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates would not be significant.

Foreign Currency Risk

International revenues from our foreign subsidiaries were 0%, 0%, and 7% of total revenues in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respoctively, and
were dertved from ouwr Australian, British and Japanese operations. Such revenues have been classified as discontinued opcration*; Our
international business was subject to risks typical of an intemational business, including but not limited to differing econoemic conditions,
changes m political chmate, differing tax structures, other regulations and restrictions and foreign exchange rate volatility, particularly the
u{nh‘mga rates between the Austratian Dollar, the British Pound, the Japanese Yen and the United States Dollar. In the first quarter of 2004, we
signed agreements to sel the assets and activities of our international subsidiaries and are in the process of Hquidating all of sur international
entities. As of December 31, 2006, our exposure to foreign currency risk was not significant.

3
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERLED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of LookSmart, Lid. and Subsidiaries:

We have completed integrated audits of LookSmart, Ltd.”s consolidated financial staiements and of 1tg internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States}. Our
opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all matenial respects, the financial
position of LookSmart, Ltd. and its subsidisries at December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the resulis of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally aceepted in the United States
of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule Hsted in the accompanying index presents fairty, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunetion with the related consolidsted financial statements. These financtal
statements and financial staternent schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 1$ to express an opinion
on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our sudits. We conducted our sudits of these statements in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As diseussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for share-based
compensation in 2006,

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, In our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on [iternal Contrel Over Finaneial Reporting
appearing under ltem 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on
criteria established in Jaterna! Controt—Integraied Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSOY, 15 fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in
ail material respeets, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2086, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
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LOOKSMART, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thonsands, exeept per share data)

December 31,

2UHM IS

Current assets:

Shori-ierm investmenis , 17,871

Trade sccounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $323 and $240 at December 31,
2004 and 2005 and allowance for returns of $14 and $14 at December 31, 2006 and 2005 4,634 2,781

Security deposits and other assets, net 3,533 2,464

Trade accounts payable

Other long-term liahilities, net of current portion

Conumitments and contingencies {Note 9)

Convertible preferred stock, $0.601 par value; Authorized: 3,000 at December 31, 2606 and 2603;
lssued and Quistanding: none gt December 31, 2006 and 2005

Additional paid-in capital 274,484

Total lisbilities and stockholders’ equity $ 72,557 $ 83,008

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LOOKSMART, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In thousands, exeept per share data)

Year Ended Becember 31
20106 2084

Product development 15,989 18,191 23,152

Other income {expense)}, nol 31 220 125

3 {0.78)

Gain from discontinued operations, net of tax — 0.01 (.06

Weighted average shares outstanding used in computing diluted net income {loss) per share 22,822 22,765 22,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

40



Table of Contents

LOOKSMART, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
{In thousands)

Additipnal Totat
Paid-in Other Accumulated Stockiolders’ Comprehensive

Shares Amount C:;Eital Equity Beficit Equify Inceme (E.oss)

Commion Stock

Common stock 1ssued upon exercise of siock
options 730 4 4,376 : 4,380

Common stock 1ssued for employee stock

purchase plan 41 276 276

Transtation adjustment (23 e (2) (23

Common stock 1ssued upon exercise of siock
options 27 -

Stock-based compensation {38y 38

Balance at December 31, 2005

Net foss (13.666) (13.666) (13,666}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LOOKSMART, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2006 2005 2044 )

Share of joint venture {income) loss (165) 113

Prepaid expenses (72} 598 1,266

Net cash used in operating activitics (6,312} (7.467) {6, 771)

Purchase of long-ierm imvestmenis

Net ¢ash provided by financing activities 163 11

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (535} (9.826) (20,604}

Cash and cash equivelents, end of period $ 32,901 $33436 & 43262

Issuance of stock for acquisitions § 3 £ 5,077

Income taxes paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LOOKSMART, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTLES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business and Principles of Consolidation

LookSmart is an online advertising and techoology company that provides relevant solutions for advertisers, publishers and consumers,
LookSmart offers advertisers targeted, pay-per-click (PPC) search advertising banners via its consumer web properties; a monitored ad
digirtbution network; and a customizable set of private-label solutions for publishers, consumer sties and web tools for consumers.

In Qctober 2003, the Company effected a one-for-five reverse stock split of its commeon stock. All share and per share information
included in these Consolidated Financial Statements has been retroactively adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split. Shares authorized and par
value were not adjusted as they were not affected by the reverse stoek split.

In the first guarter of 2004, the Company signed agreements to sell certain of the assets and activities of its Australian, British and
Japanese subsidiaries. Accordingly, the consolidated results of operations have been recast to remove the resulis of the internationsl operations
from continuing operations for all periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements. Resulty of discontinued international
operations are included in the separate line item labeled gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, for all periods presented. The
results of the discontinued operations are summarized in Note 16 {Discontinued Operations}.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared i conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. This requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asgets and Habilities, revenues,
expenses, and contingent assets and liabilities during the reporting pertod. The Company bases it estimates on various factors and information
which may include, but are not Himited to, history and prior experience, experience of other enterprises in the same mdustry, new related events,
current economic conditions and information from third party professionals that is believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

The Company previously disclosed licensing revenues of $188 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004 as a separate component
of revenues. These revenues were derived from its licensing agreement with Microsoft. [n 2006, the Company reclassified these amounts to
total revenues.

Certain other prior years” balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. The reclassifications had no

material impact on net loss or stockholders’ equity.

Fair Yalue of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivelents, trade accounts recetvable, trade accounts payable, and other
acerued lishbilities are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the

43



Table of Contents

LOOKSMART, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—({Continued)

relatively short maturity of those mstruments. Short-term mvestments and fong-term Investments are carried at fair value. Based upon
borrowing rates with similar terms corrently available to the Company, the carrying value of notes payable approximates fair value.

Foreign Currencies

The balance sheets of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, whose functional currency is their local currency through substantial
completion of liquidation, are translated into United States Dollars at vear-end rates of exchange. Revenues and expenses are translated at
average rates for the year. The resuliing tranglation adjustments are shown ag a separate component of stockholders” equity and as a component
of comprehensive income {loss). Where substantial liquidation has oceurred, the cumulative translation adjustment has been reversed and
reported in gain (loss) from discontinued operations. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 20404, the functional currency of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries was changed to the US Dollar and all franslation adjustments thereafter are included in the Consoldated Statements of Operations.
See Note 16 {Discontinued Operations) for complete discussion of discontinued international operations.

Exchange gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a foreign currency other than the functional currency of the entity
involved are included in other income (expense), net. Such exchange income {loss) amounted to 3¢, $84,000, and $(35,000) for 2006, 2003,
and 2004 respectively. The Company has not entered into foreign currency forward exchange contracts or any other derivative instruments.

Cush and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. The Company considers all highly Hyuid investments with an ortginal maturity or matarity at
date of purchase of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The Company accounts for investments n securities under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 113, decounting for Ceriain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities £°SFAS 1157). SFAS 115 requires the classification of investments in debt and equity securities with
readily determinable fair values as “held-to-maturity,” “available-for-sale,” or “irading.”

The Company invests its excess cash primarily in debt instruments of high-quality corporate and government issuers. All highly liquid
instruments with maturities at the date of purchase greater than ninety days are constdered investments. All instruments with maturities greater
than one year from the balance sheet date are considered long-term investments unless management intends to liquidate such securities in the
current operating cycle. Such securitios are classified ag short-term investments. These securitics are classified as available-for-gale and carried
at fair value, based on quoted market prices. At December 31, 2006, the Company’s short-term investments were primarily commercial paper
and U.S. government agency notes with maturities in excess of 90 days. Long-term investments at December 31, 2006, were primarily
commercial paper with maturitics in excess of one year. Fair values were determined for each individual security in the investment portiolio.

Changes in value of these investments are primarily related to changes in interest rates and are considered 1o be temporary in nature.
Except for dechines in fair value that are not considered temporary, net unrealized gains or losses on these investments are reported as a
component of accumulated comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders” cguity. The Company recognizes realized gaims and losses upon sale
of investments using the specific identification method.
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LOOKSMART, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—({Continued)

Concentrations, Credie Risk and Credit Risk Evaluation
Concentration of Credit Risk

Finaneial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credil risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, short-
term investments, long-term investments and accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, substantially all of the Company’s cash,
cash equivalents and investments were managed by one financial institution. The fair value of these investments 15 subjeet to fluctuation based
on market prices.

Credit Risk, Customer and Vendor Evafuation

Accournts receivable are typically unsecured and are derived from revenues earned from customers. The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations of 1is customers and maintaing allowances for estimated credit losses. The Company applies judgment as 1o its ability to
collect outstanding receivables based primarily on management’s evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and past collection history
and records a specific allowance. In addition, the Company records an allowance based on the length of time the receivables are past due.
Historically, such losses have been within mansgement’s expectations.

As of December 31, 2006, one customer accounted for 22% of accounis recetvable. As of December 31, 20605 one customer accounted {or
28%% of accounts receivable and another customer accounted for 13% of accounts receivable.

The Company derives its revenue primarily from its relationships with significant distribution network partners. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, three vendors each accounted for more than 10% of total traffic acquisition costs, with these three vendors accounting for
a total of 42% of the total traffic acquisition costs. For the year ended December 31, 2005, three vendors cach accounted for more than 10% of
the total traffic acquisition costs, with these three vendors accounting for a total of 53% of the total traffic acquisition costs.

Revenue Concentrations

One customer represented 10% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006. For the vear ended December 31, 2005, the same
customer represented 3% of the total revenues for that period. For the year ended December 31, 2004, no customer represented over 10% of
total revenues.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

;Fumiturf: and fixiures S 10 7 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-Hne basis over the shorter of their estimated useful Iives or the lease term.

When assets are retived or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from their
respective accounts, and any galn or loss on such sale or disposal 15 reflected in operating expenses. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Expenditures that substantially increase an asset’s useful life are capitalized.
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LOOKSMART, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Internal Use Software Development Costs

The Company asccounts for internal use software development costs in accordance with American Insittute of Certifted Public
Acgountants Statement of Position No. 98-1, dceounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use (“SOP
98-1"). In accordance with the capitelization criteria of SOP 98-1, the Company has capitalized external direet costs of materials and services
consumed in developing and obtaining internal-use computer software and the payroll and payroli-related costs for employees who are directly
assoctated with and who devote time to developing the fnternal-use computer software.

The Company’s capitalized software development costs were $8.7 million and $6.7 millon with related accumulated amortization of $6.3
million and $5.1 millicn at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Amortization expense was $1.2 million, $1.8 million and $1.8 millien
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Capitalized software development costs are included in other asseis and
are amortized over two to three years.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In sceordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427), goodwill
and other intangibles with indefinite useful Hves are not amortized but are reviewed periodically for impairment.

The provisions of SFAS 142 require that a two-step test be performed o assess goodwill for impairment. First, the fair value of each
repotting unit is compared to its carrying value. If the fair value exceeds the carrying value, goodwill is not impaired and no further testing is
performed. The second step is performed if the carrying value exceeds the fair value. The fmplied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill
must be determined and compared to the carrying value of the goodwill. 1f the carrying value of a reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds fis implied
fair value, an impairment loss equal to the difference will be recorded.

The Company reviews goodwill for potential impairment as of December 31 each year and was not required to record a goodwill
impairment charge as a result of the reviews in 2006, 2003 or 2004. The Company will continue to perform the goodwill impairment review
annually or more frequently if facts and circumstances warrant a review,

The Company uses market capitalization, as well as cash flow forecasts and other market value ndicators to review goodwill for
impairment. Cash flow forecasts used in evaluation of goodwill were based on trends of historical performance and management’s estimate of
future performance.

SFAS 142 also requires that intangible assels with definite lives be amortized over their estimated usefud Tife and reviewed for
impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, dceounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets (“SFAS 144™). The Company s currenily amortizing acquired intangible assots with definite lives over periods from two to seven
years and the amortization expense i¢ primarily classified as cost of revenues in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In sccordance with the provisions of SFAS 144, the Company reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for
impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoversble.
nder SFAS 144, an impairment loss would be recognized
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when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than it carrying
amount. Impairment, if any, is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-Hved asset exceeds itg fair value. Through
December 31, 2006, there have been no such impairments.

Revenue Recognition
Online Advertising

Online advertising revenue is primarily composed of per-click fees that the Company charges customers. Customers set the per-click fee
charged for incluston-targeted Hstings when their account is established. The per-click fee charged for keyword-targeted listings is caleulated
based on the results of online bidding on keywords or page content, up 16 4 maximum cost per keyword or page content set by the customor.

Revenues associated with online advertising products, including Advertiser Solutions, FindArticles, the Company’s other consumer sites,
and banner advertisements are generally recognized once collectibility is established, delivery of services has oceurred, all performance
obligations have been satisfied, and no refund obligations exist. The Company pays distribution network partners based on elicks on the
advertiser’s ads that are displayed on the websites of these distribution network pariners. These payments are called traffic acquisition costs and
are included in cost of revenues. In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force [ssue No. 99-19, Reparting Revenue Gross as a Principa!
Versus Net as an Agent (“EITF 99-107), the revenue derived from these arrangements that involve traffic supplied by distribution network
partners is reported gross of the payment to the distribution network partners. This revenue 15 reported gross due to the fact that the Company is
the primary obligor to the advertisers who are the customers of the advertising service.

Affiliate revenue is included in online advertising revenue and is based on commissions received for participation in affiliate programs.
Affiliate programs are programs operated by affiliste network services or onine merchants, in which merchants pay traflic providers on a cost-
per-gequisition basis. By participating in affiliate programs, the Company generates revenues when loternet consumers make a purchase from a
participating merchant’s web site after clicking on the merchant’s listing in the Company’s search results. Revenues from affiliates are carned
on a per-sale basis or as a percentage of sales rather than a per-click basts. Revenuce 18 recognized i the petiod in which a merchant finalizes a
sale and reports to the Company via its affiliate network.

The Company also enters into agreements to provide private-labeled versions of its products, including the AdCenter for Publishers.
These arcangements include multiple elements such as upfront fees, Heense fees, and revenue-sharing based on the publishers’ customer’s
monthly revenue generated through the AdCenter application. The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition in Financiaf Statements {“SAB 1047), and Financial Accounting
Standards Board Emerging 1ssues Task Foree No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multipte Deliverables (“E¥TF 006-217). The Company
recognizes upfront fees over the term of the arrangement or the expected period of performance, license fees over the term of the license, and
revenue-sharing portions over the period in which such revenue s carned. In al cases, revenue 18 recognized only when the price is fixed or
determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service s performed, and colleciibility of the resulting receivable 15 reasonably
assured.

The Company provides a provision against revenue for estimated reductions resulting from billing adjustments and customer refunds. The
amounts of these provisions are evaluated periodically based upon customer experience and historical trends.
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Deferred revenue s recorded when payments are received in advance of performance r underlying agreements. Customer deposits are
recorded when customers make prepayments for online advertising.

Licensing

Revenues associated with the Company’s former licensing agreement with Microsofl were recognized in the perfod in which URLs were
added to the database and the database was delivered to Microseft. The Company did not recognize any license revenue related to Microsoft in
2005 and 2006. Revenue from this agreement was $188 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2004 and has been meluded in total
revenues for reporting purposes.

Traffic Acguisition Costs

The Company enters into agreements of varying durations with its distribution network partners that display the Company’s listings ads
on their sites in return for a percentage of the revenue-per-click that the Company receives when the ads are clicked on those partners” sifes.

The Company also enters infe agreements of varying durations with third party affiliates that integrate the Company’s pay-for-
performance scarch service into their websites. There are generally three economic structures of the affiliate agreements: guaranteed fixed
payments which often carry reciprocal performance gunarantees from the affiliate, variable payments based on a percentage of the Company’s
revenue or based on a certain metrie, such as number of scarches or paid clicks, or a combination of the two.

The Company expenses, as cost of revenues, traffic acquisition costs under two methods; agreements with fixed payments are expensed
pro-rata over the term the fixed payment covers, and agreements based on a percentage of revenue, number of paid mtroductions, number of
searches, or other metrics are expensed based on the volume of the underlying activity or revenue, multiptied by the agreed-upon price or rate.

Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based
Payment (“SFAS 123R™), which roquires all share based payment transactions with employees and divectors, including employee siock options
and employee stock purchases related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan {(“employee stock purchases™}, to be recognized as compensation
expense over the requisite service period based on their relative fuir values. SFAS 123R supersedes the Company’s previous accounting under
Aceounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees (“APB No. 257} for periods beginning in fiscal 2006.
In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission {“SEC”} tssued Staff Accounting Bulleting No. 167 (“SAB 1077} relating to SFAS
123R. The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS 123R.

The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified progpective transition method, which requires the application of accounting
standard as of January 1, 2006, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2006. The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006 reflect the impact of SFAS 123R. In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R. Share-
based compensation expense recognized under SFAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $2.4 million, which was
related to stock options and employee stock purchases. In connection with the grant of certam stock options to employees and members of the
Board of Directors and in connection with certain acquisitions, the Company recorded share-based compensation expense under APB No. 25 of
approximately 30 and $154 thousand during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the grant date using an option-pricing model.
The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations over the requisite service periods. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for share-based awards to
employees and directors using the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB 25 as allowed under SFAS 123. Under the intrinsic value
method, no share-based compensation expense related to stock options had been recognized in the company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations for fiscal vear 2003 because the exercise price of the Company’s stock optionsg granted to employees and directors equaled the fair
market value of the underlymg stock at the grant date.

Share-based compensation expense recognized during the current period is based on the value of the portion of share-based payment
awards that is ultimately expected to vest. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures o be estimated at the time of grant in order to estimate the amount
of share-based awards that will ultimately vest. The forfeiture rate is sot at the beginning of each fiscal year and reviewed on an annual basis.
Share-based compensation expense recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31,
2006 includes (i} compensation expense for share-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet fully vested as of December 31, 2003,
based on the grant-date fair valued estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of SFAS 123 and {1) compensation expense for the
share-based payment awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123R.

tpon adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company continued its use of the Black-Scholes method of valuaiion for share-based awards granied
beginning in fiscal 2006, which was previously used for the Company’s pro forma information required under SFAS 123, On November 10,
2905, the Fmencial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB”} issued FASB Stafl position No. SFAS 123R-3, Transifion Election Related v
Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards (“SFASR-3"). The alternative transition methed meludes simplified methods to
establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool (“APIC pool™) related to the tax effects of employee share-based
compensation, and to determine the subseguent impact on the APLIC pool and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the tax effects of
employee share-based compensation awards that are outstanding upon adoption of SFAS 123R. The Company has elected to adopt the
alternative transition method provided in this FASB Staff Position for caleulating the tax effects of share-based compensation pursuant to
SFAS 123R-3.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are charged to sales and marketing expenses as incurred and amounted to $0.8 million, $0.4 million, and $0.2 million
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Product Development Costs

Research and development of new product ideas and enhancements to existing products are charged to expense as mncurred.

Ineome Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. Y9, dceaunting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 1097}, Under this method, deferred tax Habilities and assets are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement and tax
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basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax vates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected fo reverse. Valuation allowances
are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

Comprehensive fncome (Loss)
The Company has adopted the accounting treatment prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, Comprehensive
Income (“SEAS 130™). Hems of comprehensive income that the Company currently repotts are unrealized gains and losses on marketable
securities categorized as available-for-sale and foreign currency translation adjustments.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Statement of Financisl Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings per Share (“SFAS 128™), establishes standards for computing and
presenting net income {loss) per share. Basic net income (loss) per share is caleulated using the weighted average shares of commeon stock
outstanding. Diluted net income (loss) per share is caleulated using the weighted average number of common and potentially dilutive common
shares outstanding during the period, using the treasury stock method for stock options and warrants.

Segment Information

As of January 1, 2004, the Company changed to one operating segment, online advertising, due to the expiration of the Company’s only
licensing agreement with Microsefl in January of 2004,

As of Becember 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, sll of the Company’s accounts receivable, intangible assets, goodwill and deferred revenue
related to the online advertising segment. All of the Company’s revenues included In continuing operations were generated in the Hnited
States. See Note 16 {Discontinued Operations) regarding foreign revenues reported as discontinued operations. All long-lived assetls are located
in the Yuoited States.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Statement No. 109 (“FIN 487), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 requires that the Company recognize in
its financial statements the impact of a tex position if that pesition 1s more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical
merits of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, mterest and penalties, accounting in interim periods and
disclosure. The provisions of FIN 48 will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2007 (the first day of the Company’s 2007 fiscal year),
with the cumulative offect, if any, of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings at January 1, 2007, The
Company s currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. Y08, Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Cwrvent Year Financiaf Stutements {“SAB 1087), which provides interpretive guidance
on the consideration of the effects of prior vear misstatements in guantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a mateniality
assessment. SAB 108 15 effective as of the Company’s 2006 fiscal year, allowing a one-time transitional cumulative effect adjustment to
beginning retained earnings for errors that were not previously deemed material, but are material under the guidance i SAB 108. The adoption
of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measures {“SFAS 13773 SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value measures required under other accounting pronouncements, but
does not change existing gutdance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. SFAS No. 157 i effective as of the beginning of
the Company’s 2008 fiscal year. The Company s currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 157 on its Consolidated Financial
Statements.

2. Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acguisitions
The transactions below were recorded using the purchase method of accounting and the operating results of these acquisitions have been
included in the Company’s results of operations since the acquisition dates. The purchase prices have been allocated to assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their fair values on the acquisition dates.

Net Nanny

On April 22, 2004, the Company acquired the business and certain assets of Net Nanny, a division of BioNet Systems LLC, a privately
held company, for $850,000 in cash, 394,477 shares of commeon stock valued at $4.2 million and $27,000 of costs related to completing the
transaction. Net Nanny is a software application that is leaded on & user’s deskiop computer and provides online paremtal control and content
filtering of web search results.

The common stock 1ssued was valued at $10.75 per share in accordance with Emerging lssues Task Foree lssue No. 99-12,
Determination of the Measurement Date for the Market Price of Acguiver Securities Issued in a Purchase Business Combination (“EITF 99-
123 using the average of the cloesing prices of the Company’s commeon stock for the two days prior to and including Apri 22, 2004, which was
prior to the announcement date of April 29, 2004,

Purchased technology and other intangible asseis acquired are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of two to six years. The
Consolidated Financial Statements include the operating results of Net Nanny from the date of purchase. Pro forma results of operations have
not been presented because the effect of this scquisition was not material to the results of prior perioeds presented.

The following table summarizes the purchase price aHocation. These amounts were determined through established valuation techniques
in the technolegy indusiry {in thousands):

Net assets acquired 5,111
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On January 22, 2007, the Company sold Net Nanny to Content Watch. See Note 17, Subsequent Events for further disclosure.

Furl net

During the third quarter of 2004, the Company acquired the assets of Furl.net, which consisted primarily of intangible assety related to
technology, customer lists, trade name and employees. The asset acquisition did not have g significant impact on total assets of the Company.

Dispositions

The Company entered into a letter of intent (“LOY”) dated December 8, 2006 to sell the Net Nanny (“NN”) brand and technology and sll
intellectual property related to the NN product. The LOI does not speeify any minimum consideration to be received by the Compeny and the
consideration 1s capped at $3.5 million over the course of up to four years. NN was acquired by the Company in April, 2004 and was accounted
for as a purchase business combination with $3.5 million of goodwil assigned by the purchase price allocation. Because the Company s a
single operating segment and reporting unit, there is no goodwill allocated as “assets held for sale™.

At December 31, 2006, the NN net assets have been accounted for under the guidance of SFAS 144 as “assets held for sale,” and are
included on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet under the following captions (in thousands):

The NN transaction will be accounted for as an asset sale in first guarter of the Company’s fiscal year 2007, See Note 17, Subsequent
Events for further discussion.

52



Table of Contents

LOOKSMART, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—({Continued)

3. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Short-Term Investments and Long-Term Investments
Cash, cash equivalents, short-term and long-term mvestments consisted of the following as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in
thousands):

binreatized bloreatized Estimaied Fair
Becember 31, 2006 Cast (ains Easses Yalue

Total cash equivalents

Short-term investments

1,001 1,040

United States government agency notes

Long-term investments

Total long-term investments 996 {1) 908

bloreatized s fize Estimgied Fair

2,013

Money market mutoal funds 376 : 376

Total shorl-term invesiments

At December 31, 2006, gross unrealized Tosses on mmvestments were all in loss positions for less than 12 months.
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Market values were determined for each individual security in the investment portfolio. Any declines in values were primarily related to
changes m interest rates and are considered to be temporary in nature.
4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following (in thousandsy:

Becember 31
2044 2IH5

Leaschold improvemenis

accumulated depreciation and amortization (20,4163 (17,327}

Depreciation and amortization expense was $3.1 million, $3.6 million, and $4.5 million for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The Company’s intangible assets consist primarily of purchased technology and have estimated useful lives of two to seven years.
Goodwill and intangible assets were as follows (in thousands:

December 31,
6

Net trade namos

Less accumulaied amortization

3 3.364 $ 3,

Intangible assets, net

During the third quarter of 2005, the Company revised il estimate of the remaining useful life of one of the intangibles assets, which
resulted in an accelerated amortization of $0.2 million.
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Intangible assel amortization ¢expense was $2.2 million, $2.5 million, and $1.9 million for 2006, 2003, and 2004, respectively and was
recorded primarily in cost of revenues.

Estimated future intangible amortization expense, net of mtangible assets of $339 thousand classified as assets held for sale related to the
Net Nanny disposition (see Note 2) is as follows (in thousands):

Estimated Remaintng

Total 2,825

6. Other Accerued Liabilities

Acerued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

Decomber 31,

Customer refunds 93 47

5.624 $4.830

7. Notes Payable
Future principal and interest payments under notes payable at December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousandsy:

Principal Friterest
Year PFaymeats Payments
Saymeats

e

Total 183 26

In January 2000, the Company issued an unsecured promissoery note in the principal amount of $472 thousand to its landlerd to finance
tenant improvements. The note bears interest at 9% per annum and 5 payable in equal monthly installments over a term of 10 years. As of
December 31, 2006, the balance of this note was $183 thousand.

L&
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8. Income Taxes

The Company was in a net loss position in 2006, 20035, and 2004, The income tax provision for 2606, 2003, and 2004 relates to minimum
state tax, federal alternative minimum tax £“AMT”} and revisions of prior years” estimated taxes.

The primary components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows {in thousands):

Becember 31
2044 2045

$ 606,229

Net aperating losses £ 69,870

As of Becember 31, 2006, the Company has net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of approximately $188.0 million and $100.0
million for federal and state purposes, respectively. The Company also has an AMT credit carcyforward of approximately $100 thousand. The
NOL carryforwards will expire at various dates beginning in 2006 through 2025, if not utilized. The AMT tax credit carryforward may be
carried forward indefinitely. Included in the NOL carryforwards are losses resulting from the exercise of stock options totaling $47.0 million
and $24.0 mitlion for federal and state purposes, respectively.

A valuation allowance existed as of December 31, 2006 and 2003 due to the uncertainty of net operating loss utilization based on the
Company’s history of losses. The valuation allowance increased by $3.4 million, $10.3 million, and $2.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004, respectively.

The difference between the Company’s effective income tax rate and the federal statutory rate s reconcifed below:

Year Ended December 3,

2144 245 2004

9. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases
The Company leases office space under & non-terminable operating lease that expires i 2009,
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Future minimum payments under this operating lease and minimum sublease rental income, at December 31, 2006 are as follows {in
thousands):

Operating Atinimum Sublease
Lease Rentud Income

Rent expense under all operating leases for 2006, 2005, and 2004, amounted to $2.4 million, $3.9 million, and $4.0 million {net of
sublease income of $0.8 million, $0.6 million, and $0.6 million), respectively. Rent expense is net of lease restructuring adjustments related to
certain leased facihities. See Note 13 {Restructuring Chargest. Under the terms of the office lease agreement for the Company’s headquarters,
the Company has two consecutive options to extend the term, each for a five-year period.

The Company has outstanding standby letters of credit (“SBLC”} related to security of building leases and security for payroll processing
services of $1.1 millon at December 31, 2006. The SBLC containg two fmancial covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was in
compliance with all required covenants.

Guarantees and Indemnifies

During tts normal course of business, the Company has made certain guarantees, indemnities and commitments under which it may be
required to make payments in relation to certain fransactions. These indemnities inelude intellectual property and other indemnities to the
Company’s customers and distribution actwork partners in connection with the sales of its products, and indemnities to various lessors in
connection with faciity leases for certain claims arising from such facility or lease. Further, the Company has sgreements whereby it
indemnifics its officers and directors for certain events or occurrences while the officer or director {8, or was, serving, at the Company’s
request, in such capacity, to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of Delaware. The maximum potential amount of futwre
payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited. However, the Company maintaing
directors and officers insurance coverage that may contribute, up to certain Hmits, a portion of any future simounts paid, for indemnification of
directors and officers. The Company believes the estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements in excess of applicable msurance
coverage s minimal. Historically, the Company has not incurred any losses or recorded any liabilities related to performance under these types
of indemmnities.

Legal Proceedings

The Company 1s invelved, from time to thme, in various {egal proceedings arising from the normal course of business activities. Although
the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company does not expect resolution of these matiers to have a
material adverse impact on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position. However, an unfavorable resolution of a
matter could, depending on its amount and timing, materfally affect its future results of operations, cash flows or financial position in & future
period. Regardless of the cutcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on the Company because of defense costs, diversion of management
resources and other factors.
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Cisneras v. Yahoo!, Inc

On Aungust 3, 2004, Mario Clsneros and Michael Voight filed a private attorney general Tawsuit on behalf of a proposed class in Superior
Court in San Francisco County, California. The complaint names thirteen scarch engines or web publishers as defendants, including the
Company, and alleges unfair business practices, unlawful business practices, and other causes of action in connection with the display of
adverltisements from Internet gambling companies. The complaint seeks restitution, unspecified compensatory damages, declaratory and
infunctive relief, and atiorneys’ fees. Plaintiffs also filed a motion for preliminary injunction on August 3, 2004,

On January 3, 2003, the Company filed a demurrer to the complaint, which was overruled on January 27, 2005, On January 3, 2005, the
Company also filed a motton to strike certain allegations regarding claimg for restitution, which was denied in part and granted in part on
May 9, 2605. The Company filed an answer to the complaint on February 28, 2005, consisting of a general denial of all allegations. On
October 11, 2003, the court conducted a trial on two of the Company’s affirmative defenses. The court held that California public policy barg
the plaintiffs from receiving a portion of their requested damages.

On December 2, 2003, plaintiffs filed a renewed motion for a preliminary injunction. Defendants responded on or sround February 27,
2006. The court has allowed certain discovery to proceed with respect to plaintiffs’ renewed motion. On or about May 23, 2006, plaintiffs were
granted leave fo amend their complaint to name additional plaintiffs. On or about September 8, 2006, plaintif¥s served an amended complaint
naming addittonal plaintiffs. The Company has since filed a general denial to the amended complaint. A Case Management Conference was
held on January 3, 2007, At the Conference, the Court stayed plaintifs” pending discovery requests and ordered additionsl briefing on two
legal issues. A hearing on the issues is scheduled for April 13, 2007,

The nature of Hiigation is inherently uncertain and therefore the Company cannot predict the ouicome of these proceedings or estimate
the possible effects on our financial position and results of operations.

Lane’'s Gifts and Collectibles, L.L.C., v. Yohoo! Inc

On March 14, 2005 the Company was served with the Second Amended Complaint in a class sction lawsuil in the Cireutt Court of Miller
County, Arkansas. The complaint names eleven search engines and web publishers as defendants, including the Company, and alleges breach
of contract, restitution/unjust encichment/money had and received, and civil conspiracy elaims in connection with contracts allegedly entered
into with plamtiffs for Internet pay-per-click advertising. The named plainti{fs on the Second Amended Complaint are Lane’s Gifts and
Collectibles, L.L.C., U.8. Citizens for Fair Credit Card Terms, Ine., Savings 4 Merchants, [nc., and Max Caulfield d/b/s Caulficld
Investigations.

On March 30, 2005 the case was removed to United States Disirict Court for the Western District of Arkansas. On April 4, 2003 plaintiffy
.8, Citizens for Fair Credit Card Terms, Inc. and Savings 4 Merchants, loe. filed a motion of voluntary dismissal without prejudice. The
motion was granted on April 7, 2005, Plaintiffs Lane’s Gifts and Collectibles, L.L.C. and Max Caulfield d/v/a Caulfield investigations filed a
motion to remand the case to state cowt on April 13, 2003, which was granted in June 2003, In July 2003, defendants, including the Company,
petitioned the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals for an appeal of the remand order, and moved 1o stay the proceedings while the appeal 18
pending. The petition was denied on September 8, 2005 and the case was remanded to the Circuit Court of Miller County, Arkansas. The
Company was served with discovery requests on October 7, 20035, The Company has filed and/or joined motions to dismiss on the basis of
failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, lack of personal jurisdiction, and improper venue. Pursuant to the court’s nitial
scheduling order, planiffs had until January 27, 2006 to respond to the motions to dismiss for lack of personal
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furisdiction and fmproper venue; and until June 9, 2006 to respond to the motion to dismiss on the basts of failuwre to state a claim upon which
relief can be granted. However the court entered an order staying all proceedings for & period of 60 days on January 9, 2006, On March &,
2006, the Court entered an order extending the siay until March 31, 2006. On April 1, 2006, the Court further extended the stay until April 20,
2006, On April 20, 2006 the Court preliminarily approved a class settlement among plaintiffs, defendant Google, Inc., and certain defendants
who display Google advertisements on their networks {the “Google Settlement”). The Google Settlement purports to release Google of all
claims and also purports to release certaln defendants, including us, for any claims associated with the display of Google advertisements on
their networks. On July 24 and 25, 2006, the Court had a final setilement hearing on the Google Settlement, and on July 26, 2006 the Court
approved the settiement. On April 21, 2006, the Court ordered the remaining defendants, including us, to mediation and further stayed the
proceedings to June 21, 2006. The Court further extended the Stay as to us until August 16, 2006. The parties thereafter stipulated that the siay
would remain in effect while the parties continue to comply with the Court’s order regarding mediation. On January 10, 2007, the Court further
extended the stay untit May 1, 2007,

The nature of Htigation is inherently uncertain and therefore the Company cannot predict the sutcome of these proceedings or estimate
the possible effects on our financial position and results of operations.

JV Funding
Pursuaat to a setilement agreement with British Telecommunications (“BT”} for the dissolution of the joint venture, LookSmart and BT
are jointly Hable for the costs incurred to shut down operations of the joint venture. The Company recognized a share of joint venture income of
$165 thousand in the fourth quarter of 2006 dug to the settiement of certain prior claims. The Company does not expect to incur significant
additional expenses to shut down the joint venture. The Company expects to record income or loss from its share of the joint venture as it
moves to finalze its wind-down activities in 2007.

19.  Stockholders’ Equity

In October 2005, the Company effected a one-for-five reverse stock sphit of the Company’s common stock.

Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company's charter authorizes the board of directors to 1ssue up to 5,000,000 shares of $0.001 par value preferred stoek. At
December 31, 2006, no shares of preferred stock were issued or outstanding.

Chess Depositary Interests

On February 25, 2000, the Company completed the listing of approximately 90 million Chess Depositary [nterests, or CDls, on the
Australian Stock Exchange, or ASX, under the trading symboel “LOK”. The Company completed the listing in order to enable investors that
prefer to nvest in ASX-listed companies to acquire an equity interest in LookSmart. Al of the shares of LookSmart common stock
exchangeable for the CDis were offered by selling stockholders. The Company did ot issue any new securities in connection with, or receive
any proceeds from, the listing of the CDis. 1o November 2004, the Company completed a 20 for 1 consolidation of the CDls Hsted on the
Australian Stock Exchange. A total of 282 million CDls were exchanged for 14 million CDI’s as a result of the consolidation. At December 31,
2006, cach CDI was freely exchangeasble with shares of LookSmart common stock at the option of the holder at a ratio of 1:1. The number of
CDIs ontstanding as of December 31, 2006 was 1457696,
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Stock Option Plans

In December 1997, the Company approved the 1998 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan™). In October 2004, the Company acquired Zeal and
assumed all the stock options outstanding under the 1999 Zeal Media, Ine. Stock Plan (the “Zeal Plan™). in Aprl 2002, the Company acquired
WiseNut, Inc. and assumed all the stock options outstanding under the WiseNut, [ne. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan {the “WiseNut Plan™). The
Company has reserved 4,624,158 and 4,157,611 shares of commeon stock for issuance under its stock option plans at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively. Outstanding stock options gencrally become exercisable over a three or four year period from the grant date
and have a term of ten years. Under the Plan, the Company may grant incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options and stock purchase
rights to employees, directors and consultants.

As of December 31, 2006, 2,741,036 options were outstanding and 1,883,122 shares remained available for grant under the Company’s
plans.

Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan

I July 1999, the stockholders approved the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). At December 31, 2006, a total of 480,000
shares of common siock were reserved for issuance under the ESPP. As of December 31, 2006, 424,701 shares have been issued under the
ESPP and 55,299 shares remam available for issuance.

Share-Based Compensation

For 2005 and 2004, the Company accounted for employee stock options under APB 25 and related interpretations. Under APB 25, the
Company recorded deferred compensation of $0 and $0.1 million, respectively, for stock option grants related to the options assumed in
acquisitions. The Company recorded stock compensation expense as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended Becember 31

Total stock-based compensation
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For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the following table illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share as if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation , as amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensaiion-
Tramsition and Disclosure |, to share-based employee compensation (in thousands, except per share data):

¥ear Erded Becember 31,

Pro forma net loss $ {19,982} 3 { 14,202}

As reported $ (0.78) 3 (043

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the pro forma
fair value of option grams and ESPP awards using the following weighied average assumplions:

Year Ended December 31

:Expc:cted term of ESPP awards (vears) 0.5

The weighted average fair value for options granted was $3.37 and $9.80 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of options
aranted to independent contractors has been determined using the Black-Scholes model with the same assumptions ag options granted to
employees, except the expected option Hfe, which was the duration of the consulling agreement.

The effect on net loss and net loss per share from the adoption of SFAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2006 1s as follows {in
thousands):

Year Eaded
Becember 31, 2006 )
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The adoption of SFAS 123R did not have a material impact on income tax expense or cash flows.

Share-based compensation expense recorded during the year ended December 31, 2006 was included in the Company’s Consolidated
Statement of Operations as follows (in thousands):

Year Eaded
Brecenther 31, 2066

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded stock based compensation of approgimately $2.4 million. Of that amount,
approximately 395 thousand was capitalized related to the development of internal-use software in accordance with American [nstitute of
Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™} Statement of Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use {“SOP 98-17)

Valuation Assumpriions

Ag share-based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended Becember 31, 2006 is
based on awards uliimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at
the time of grant and revised, H necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfettures differ from those estimates. In the Company’s pro forma
information required under SFAS 123 for periods prior to fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for forlfeitures as they oceurred.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the fair value of each option grant was estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended

December 3, 2006

Volatility 58.0%

Annual forferture rate

Volatility: The volatility factor was based on the Company’s historical stock prices over the most recent period commensurate with the
estimated expected term of the stock options and ESPP awards.
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Risk-Free Interest Rate: The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method on the implied yield
currently available on U.S. Treasury issues with an equivalent remaining term.

Expected Term: The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock-based awards are expected to be
outstanding and was determined based on historical experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-

based awards, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior as influenced by changes to the terms of its stock-based awards.

Expected Dividend: The Black-Scholes valuation model calls for a single expected dividend yield as an input. The Company has not
issued any dividends, and does not expect to issue dividends in the foreseeable future.

Annual Forfeiture Rater When estimating pre-vesting forfeitures, the Company considers voluntary termination behavior as weH as
potential future workforce reduction programs.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted in the vear ended December 31, 2006 was $2.83.

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $33 thousand. The Company
issues new shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options. No income tax benefits have been realized from exercised stock options.

Total unrecognized share-based compensation cost was approximately $7.7 million as of December 31, 2606, and the weighted average
period over which it is expected fo be recognized 15 3 years.

Stock option activity under the plans during the periods indicated 1s as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Weighted Average
Outstanding Options Exercise Price Per

Cancelled

Cranted 932 $ 3.81

Cancelled
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006 (in thousands, except per share data):

Oustanding Exercisabie
Weighited
Average
Remaining Weighted Wetghted
Cortracinal Average Agpregate Average Aggregate

Mumher ife Exercise Intriasic Mumber Exereise Ertrinsic

Ohagst ng

$10.55-$85.31 276 6.88  $13.40 222 $13.63

Agpregate intrinsic value represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on the Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2006
{$4.46), which would have been received by option holders had all option holders exercised their options on that date.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were 1,302,216 and 763,079 options exercisable, respectively.
11. Other Equity
Other equity consists of the following (in thousands):

Decomber 31,

2006 2005 2004

Total other equity

12. Net Income (Loss) per Share

In sceordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings per Share (“SFAS 1287), a
reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of basic and diluted net income (loss} per share is provided as follows (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2006

Weighted average common sh

Net fogs from continuing operations per share:

Diluted $  (0.79) § (0.49)
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Options and warrants to purchase common stock are not included in the diluted {oss per share calculations if their effect 15 antidilutive.
The antidilutive securities which include potential common stock relating to stock options for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 were 26,371, 68,181 and 310,173, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, 2,104,288, 1,274,104 and 958,792, respectively, of potential common stock
related to outstanding stock options and warrants have been excluded from the caleulation of diluted net loss per share as thetr respective
gxercise prices were more than the average market value for the respective periods.

13. Restructuring Charges
Employee Severance Costs

In November 2003, the Company implemented & restructuring plan fo eliminate 77 positions in the United States due to the loss of the
ongeing arrangement with Microsoft. The severance charges associated with the reduction in force were 30.8 million in 2003,

In the first and the second quarters of 2004, the Company eliminated an additional 43 positions in the United States, which included a
reduction in its sales force of 11 positions, a reduction in its general and administrative departments of five positions, a reduction in its product
development department of 14 positions and a reduction in its editorial team of 13 positions. This reduction resulted in $1.0 million
restructuring charges recognized in 2004, which are included in operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. All
severance costs were paid by December 31, 2004, No restructuring charges related to employee severance costs were incurred in 2005 and
2006.

Lease Restructuring Costs

In conneetion with the restructuring activities noted above, the Company closed certain leased facilities and incurred {ease restructuring
costs related o closing these facilities of $3.2 million in the fourth guarter of 2003 and costs related to closing of further redundant leased
factlities of $3.2 million in the first quarter of 2004. These costs are classified as restructuring charges on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations, and are included in operating expenses. The lease restructuring liability is amortized using the interest method through the life of
the lease, which terminates in 2009,

As of December 31, 2004 the restructuring Hability was $5.7 million. Of this amount, $1.3 milion was included in current portion of
{ong-term Habilities and $4.4 million was included in other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the first half of 2005, the Company had limited success in subleasing its unused space since the establishment of the restructuring
liability, and modified its original estimates. This resulted in additional restructuring charges of $1.9 million i the second quarter of 2005,
reflecting the reduced probability of subleasing the available space. However in October 2005, the Company and one of its sublessees executed
a letter of intent to sublease an additional portion of the unused space, which resulted in a reduction of the restructuring lisbility by $0.3
million, which was recorded in the third guarter of 2005, Further, in February 2006, the Company and another sublessee executed a letter of
intent to sublease an additional portion of the unused space, which resulted in a further reduction of the restructuring liability by $0.6 million,
which was recorded in the fourth guarter of 2005.
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As of December 31, 2003, the lease restructuring Hability was $5.4 million. Of this amount, $1.5 million was mmcluded in current portion
of long-term liabilities and $3.9 million was included in other long-term Habilties on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In 2006, the Company recorded a restructuring benefit of approximately $290 thousand refated to the extension of sublease arrangements
for portions of our unused space.

As of December 31, 2006, the lease restructuring Hability was $3.8 million. Of tlus amount, $1.3 million was mncluded in current portion
of long-term liabilities and $2.5 milllon was included in other long-term Habilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table sets forth restructuring activity during the yvears ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

Emplovee Lease
Zeveraace Restructuring
Casts Cos

Fatal

Cash payments (21143 {2,114

Additional restruciuring costs 1,024 1,024

14. Related Party Transactions

The Company has a related-party investment in the BT LookSmart joint venture, which both the Company and British
Telecommunications agreed to dissolve in December 2002, The remaining investment balance 1s $0.4 million at December 31, 2006 and $3.3
million at December 31, 2005, which reflects the current estimated value upon final liquidation of the joint venture. The Company recognized
income (loss) from its share of the joint venture refating fo the wind-down activitics of the entity.

15. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) vetirement plan covering all cligible employees. Employees may contribute amounts ranging from 1% to 50%
of annual salary, up to the maximum Hmits established by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company matches these contributions in cash up
to 5% of annual salary up to a total match of $3 thousand per year. Employees vest 100% immuediately in their own contributions and 50% per
year in Company matching contributions. Any employer contributions that are not vested are forfeited if an employee leaves the Company, but
ave reinstated if the employee retumns to service within five years. The Company made matching contributions totaling $0.2 million, $0.3
million, and $4.6 million for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
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16. Discontinued Operations

I January 2004, the Company agreed to sell certain of the assets of Hs Australian subsidiary and related mtellectual property rights to a
subsidiary of Telsira Corporation Limited for approximately $0.7 million. In March 2004, the Company agreed to sell certain of the assets of its
Japanese subsidiary and related intellectual property rights to Value Commerce for approximately $0.7 million. In March 2004, the Company
agreed to sel certain assets of it United Kingdom subsidiary and related itellectual property rights to Crystal for approximately $0.1 miilion.
The gain on disposal of the operations in 2004 of $1.0 million is shown net of $0.4 million for transitional expenses.

In 2003, the Company recognized an additional gain of $6.1 million related to additional disposal activities and an increased tax benefit.
In August 2006, the Company liguidsted ity German subsidiary and incurred 2 loss of $31 thousand on the liquidation of this subsidiary.

Revenue and pretax net income {loss} from the discontinued international operations (excluding gain on disposal), previously included in
the online advertising segment of the business, reported in discontinued operations were as follows {in thousands):

Year Ended Becember 31

As the Company finalizes the liquidation process of s Australian subsidiary, it expects to record additional income related to the reversal
of the cumulative translation adjustment of approximately $0.3 million. The Company also expects to record additional amounts relating to the
finalization of the Hyquidation of varicus foreign operations in 2007. The Company expects to finalize the dissolution of these entities during
2007.

Net assets related to the discontinued operations are included m current assets and were approximately $163 thousand and $199 thousand
as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

17. Subseguent Events

In December 2006, the Company eniered into a lotter of intent to sell the asscts and liabilities of the Net Nanny product. These asscts met
the definition of “assets held for sale” in accordance with the provision of SFAS 144, See Note 2 for further disclosure. The Company will
record a loss on the cloging of the transaction on January 22, 2007 of approximately $248 thousand. The sale proceeds are comprised of
contingent purchase consideration of up to $3.5 millon, which may be realized at future dates based on the amount of revenue of the buyer;
however, the letter of itent does not specify any minimum consideration to be received by the Company.
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18.  Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudifed)

The following tables set forth certain unaudited statements of operations data for the eight quarters ended December 31, 2006, This data
has been derived from the unaudited interim financial statements prepared on the same basis as the audited Consolidated Financigl Statements
contained in this Annual Report and, in the opinion of management, nclude all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments
that are considered necessary for a fair statement of such information when read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

The table below presents quarterly data for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands, except per share data):

Fourih Third Second Firsi

Quarter® Chaarter® Quarter* Qraarter”

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax

Loss from continuing operations $(3,772)  ${4,269) $(5444) ${4.420

51
* Adjusted for the effects of a one-for-five reverse split of the Company’s common stock effective October 26, 2003,
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ITEM 9. CHANGELES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal exceative officer and principal financial
offtcer, the Company conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15{¢)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {ihe Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive
officer and our principal financial ofticer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the most recent fiscal guarter covered by this report, there were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected, or could be reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s fnternal contro! over financial
reporting. During 2006, we remedied significant deficiencies identified during the general eveluation of internal controls and the 2005 close
process. During the course of the general evaluation of internal controls and the 2006 close process, there were six significant deficiencies
identified in the design and operation of sur internal controls. We have addressed and are now in the process of remediating these deficiencies.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financtal reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of cur internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control-—infegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COS0) and concluded that we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal contrel over fimancial reporting may not prevent or defect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectivencss to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal conirol over finencial reporting as of December 31, 2006 has been sudited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which 18 included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Publie Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Please see the Report of [ndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting under Hem 8 of
this Form 10-K, which report is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER iNFORMATION

Ou February 8, 2007, the Company renewed its AdCenter for Publishers licensing agreement with 1AC Secarch & Media (“1AC”) through
December 31, 2009, Under the Agreement, JAC uses the Company’s AdCenter for Publishers product as & component of its Ask.com
sponsored listings advertising program that allows advertisers to purchase, manage and optimize pay per click advertising campaigns on the
Ask.com network. The Agreement allows IAC to continue to Heense the Company’s AdCenter for Publishers product through the end of 2009,
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PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this ftem is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the
2007 annual meeting of stockholders (the “2007 Proxy Statement™}, which the Company intends to file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days of the end of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2006,

ITEM 11. EXECUHTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required under this item may be found in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required under this item may be found in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information required under this item may be found in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required under this item may be found in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

{a¥(1} Financiaf Statements . The following are filed as part of l[tem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of [ndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm 37
Consolidated Balance Sheets 35
Consolidated Statements of Operations 4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders™ Equity 41
Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows 42
Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements 43

{2y Financial Scheduies. Schedule i “Valuation and Qualifying Accounts” appears below. Al other schedules for which provision
is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission have been omitted because the
information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in our Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes
thereto. The financial statement schedule below should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements in
ltem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SCHEDULE 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
{In thousands)

Batance at Charged £ Balance at
Beginring Costs ard End of
Bescription of Period Expen: Beduetivns Period

Allewance for reiurng

Total 67,735 10,353 1,294 76,798

Allowance for doubtiul accounts 249 296 213 323

{by Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index (following the Signatures section of thig report) are included, or meorporated
by reference, in this Annual Report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Sceurities Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused thig report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized m San Francisco, California, on March 16, 2007:

LOOKSMART, LTD.

By: f8/ ) OHN S IMONELLI

John Simonelll, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints David B.
Hills and John SimoneHl, jointly and severally, as his or her attorneys-in-fact, cach with the full power of substitution, for him or her, in any
and all capacities, to sign any amendment to this Anoual Report on Form 10-K, and to fie the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents
in comnection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting to said attorneys-in-fact, and each of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requistte and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact or any of them, or their or his
or her substituie or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. Pursuant to the reguirements of the Securities Act of
1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Sisnature Tiile Date
& DavinB Hies Chief Executive Officer {Principal Excecutive March 16, 2007
David B. Hills Officer)
s/ JOHNS IMONELL Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and March 16, 2007
John Simoneli Accounting Officer)
is/ E DWARD W EST Chair of the Board March 16, 2007

Edward West

s T ErEsa D o1as Director March 16, 2007
Teresa Dial

&0 A NTHONY C ASTAGNA Director March 16, 2007
Anthony Castagna

fo M ARK S ANDERS Director March 16, 2007
Mark Sanders

/0 T oty ) W RiGHT Director March 16, 2007
Timothy J. Wright
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Exhibit

Numher

31

32
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

191

19.2

1.3

10.4

1.5

10.7

10.8

19.12

19.344

1.35+4

10.361%

EXHIBIT INDEX

Bescription of Docament
Restated Certificate of [ncorporation (Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on
November 14, 2605).

Bylaws {Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-(} filed with the SEC on August 14, 2000}

Form of Specimen Stock Certificate (Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) filed with the SEC on
November 14, 2605).

Forms of Stock Option Agreement used by the Registrant in connection with grants of stock options to employees, directors and
other service providers in connection with the Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Plan {Filed with the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 22, 2004).

Form of cover sheet for use with Stock Option Agreement for grants of stock options to executives in connection with the
Company’s Executive Team locentive Plan, Plan Year 2006 (Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) file
with the SEC on May 10, 2006).

Form of cover sheet for use with stock option agreement for granis of stock options to executives in connection with the
Company’s Executive Team Incentive Plan, Plan Year 2007 (Filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on March 2, 20607).

Form of Indemmification Agreement entered tnto between the Registrant and each of its directors and officers {Filed with the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 {File No. 33380581} filed with the SEC on June 14, 1999},

Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Plan (Filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 {File No. 333-80381)
filed with the SEC on June 14, 1999),

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan as amended (Filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 {File No. 333-
129087} filed with the SEC on November 29, 2003

LookSmart, Ltd. Executive Team Incentive Plan, Plan Year 2006 {Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0)
filed with the SEC on May 14, 2006).

LookSmart, Ltd. Executive FTeam Incentive Plan, Plan Year 2007 {Filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on March 2, 2007},

Zeal Media, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan {Filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on
BDecember 7, 20001,

WiseNut, Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (Filed with the Company’s Registration Statement ot Form S-8 filed with the SEC on
April 18, 2002).

Lease Agreement with Rosenberg SOMA [nvestments 111, LLC for property located at 625 Second Street, San Francisco,
California, dated May 5, 1999 (Filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (File No. 333-80581} filed with
the SEC on June 14, 1999}

Co-Location Services Agreement between the Registrant and Savvis Communications Corporation dated February 19, 2004
(Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed with the SEC on November 7, 20603).

Second Addendum to AdCenter License, Hosting and Support Agreement between the Registrant and 1AC Search & Media
dated May 16, 2006 (Filed with the Company’s Form 106-Q with the SEC on August 8, 2006).

Third Addendum to AdCenter License, Hosting and Support Agreement between the Registrant and 1AC Search & Media dated
January 1, 2007
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19.42

19.56
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19.62

1.63
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23.1*

Bescription of Dacament
AdCenter License, Hosting and Support Agreement between the Registrant and Ask Jeeves, Ine. dated May 16, 2065 (Filed with
the Compeny’s Quarterly Report on Form 10- filed with the SEC on May 10, 2006).

Addendum to AdCenter License, Hosting and Support Agreement between the Registrant and Ask Jeeves, Inc. dated January 20,
2006 (Filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) filed with the SEC on May 10, 2006).

Paid Listings License Agreement between the Regisirant and SearchFeed.com dated April 15, 2006 (Filed with the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0) filed with the SEC on May 10, 2006).

License Agreement between the Registrant and SearchFeed.com dated November 23, 2003, as Amended on March 29, 2004 and
March 21, 2005 (Filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 13, 20063,

Separation Agreement and General Release between the Registrant and its former General Counsel dated August 20, 2003 (Filed
with the Company’s Anaual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 15, 20063}

Discretionary cash bonuy awarded to the Company’s CFO (Described in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on February 21, 2007}

Employment offer letter between the Regisirant and its Senior Vice President, Business Development dated Aprit 18, 2005 {Filed
with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 25, 20053).

Employment offer letter between the Registrant and its Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer dated April 18, 2003
{Filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 235, 2605).

Amendment to employment offer letter between the Registeant and itg Chief Executive Officer dated June 21, 2003 {Filed with
the Compeny’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 21, 2003).

Employment offer letter between the Registrant end its General Counsel end Sentor Vice President dated as of July 11, 2003
{Filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 14, 2005).

Employment offer letter between the Registrant and its Viee President, Publisher Products dated as of August &, 2005 (Filed with
the Compeny’s Carrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 2005).

Employment offer letter between the Registeant and its Chief Financial Officer dated October 20, 2005 (Filed with the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed with the SEC on October 27, 2003}

Employment offer letier between the Registrant and its Vice President, Marketing dated as of December 4, 2005 {Filed with the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 23, 2005).

Promotion letter between the Registrant and its Vice-President, Advertising Sales dated November 15, 2006 (Filed with the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2006).

List of Subsidiaries
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Mumther Bescription of Docament

24.1 Power of Attorney {please see the signature page of this report)

31.1% Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2#% Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1% Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

{*y Filed herewith

(I} Materizal in the exhibit marked with a “}” hag been onitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Seearities and

Exchange Commission. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
{+) Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to portions of the exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Exhibit 18.36

THIRD ADDENDUM TO
ADCENTER LICENSE, HOSTING AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

This Third Addendum is entered into by and between TAC Search & Media, a Delaware corporation (“Partner”) and LookSmart, Lid., a
Delaware corporation {“LookSmart™) and is the third addendum to that certain AdCenter License, Hosting and Support Agreement by and
between Partner and LookSmart entered into as of May 16, 2605, as amended by the parties in two addenda effective January 2006 and May
2006, respectively (the “Agreement”).

This Third Addendum is effective as of January 1, 2007 (the “Third Addendum Effective Date™).

Partner and LookSmart wish to extend the term of their relationship and amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement. Therefore, for
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Partner and LoskSmart agree as follows:

1. Subscription Payment. Section 3a} is revised to delete the table and the text following it and replace it with the following:

LookSneart *** Share of Partner

Fime Period ek
s ok )
EE EX T
EE Y EX T

EEY

ErTy

EEY

Confidential

##% Material in the exhibit marked with a “*#*” has been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential trestment {ied with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.



2. Term . The phrase “two years after the Version 1.0 Launch Date” in Section 8a) is deleted and replaced with the following: “December 31,
20097,

3. Termination. Section 8} ¢) is deleted i its entirety and replaced with the following: “8} ¢) Fermination by Partner . Partner may terminate
this Agreement by giving LookSmart not less than ninety (90) days” prior written notice. Notwithstanding Partner’s right to terminate under
this Section 8¢), in the event of such a termination by Partner, Partner shall #%#

Fhhd

4. Partner will not, direetly or indirectly, solicit for employment or for providing services to Parteer, nor hire, any LookSmart employee or
consultant who works on or is invelved with the AdCenter for the shorter of a3 one (1) year after the time such employee or consultant ceases
working on or mvolvement with the AdCenter or b) one (1) year after the termination or expiration of the Agreement {as modified).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Partner shall not be prohibited from hiring persons who respond to general advertisements or
who have been terminated by LookSmart. This provision will survive any termination or expiration of the Agreement in accordance with is
terms.

5. Partner agrees to issue a joint press release with LookSmart announcing the extension of the relationship represented by the Agreement.

6. Except as expressly modified by this Third Addendum, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Partner LookSmart

By: i3/ D anigELE. C AuL By: /57 DavioB ArpH LS
Name: Daniel E. Caul Nante: David Bard Hills
Title: Senor Vice President & General Counsel Title: CEC
Confidential

##% Material in the exhibit marked with a “*#*” has been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential trestment {ied with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Omiited portions have been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.



Name of Entity

Ligt of Subsidiaries

Jurisdiciion

Exhibit 21.1

BTLookSmart Pty Lid.
LookSmart (Barbados), Inc.

LookSmart Holdings (Delaware}, Lid.

LookSmart International Pty Lid.
LookSmart Netherlands B.Y.
LookSmut United Kingdom Ltd.
WiseNut, [nc.

Australia
Barbados
Delaware
Australia
Notherlands
Hnited Kingdom
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form 3-8 {Nos. 33-129987, 333.120205, 333-
112070, 333-100228, 333-86436, 333-65986, 333-31408, 333-45634, 333-89653} and Form 8-3 No. 333121327 of LockSmart, Lid. of cur
report dated March 15, 2007 relating to the financial statements, finencial statement schedule, management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

i/ P RICEWATERHOUSH C QOPERS LLP

San Jose, California
March 15, 2007



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

1, David B. Hills, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of LookSmart, Ltd.;

Based on my knowledge, this report dees not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the regisirant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer{s} and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining diselogsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{¢) and 15d-15(e}) and internal control over {inancial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 153d-134{}} for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
superviston, to ensure that material imformation relating fo the registrant, including its consoldated substdiaries, is made known o
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.  Designed such internal controf over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the relisbility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢.  Evaluated the cffectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure conirols and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the peried covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

& Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal guarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably lkely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent

functions):

a.  All sigmificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably lkely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b, Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or sther employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
mternal contral over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2607

i5/ DavipB ML

David B. Hills
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

1, John Simonell, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of LookSmart, Ltd.;

Based on my knowledge, this report dees not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the regisirant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer{s} and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining diselogsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{¢) and 15d-15(e}) and internal control over {inancial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 153d-134{}} for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
superviston, to ensure that material imformation relating fo the registrant, including its consoldated substdiaries, is made known o
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.  Designed such internal controf over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the relisbility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢.  Evaluated the cffectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure conirols and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the peried covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

& Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal guarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably lkely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent

functions):

a.  All sigmificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably lkely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b, Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or sther employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
mternal contral over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2607

£ JOHN S IMONELL]

John Simonelh
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CRIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 135,
A8 ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, David B. Hillg, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopied pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of LookSmart, Ltd. on Form 1)-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 1534d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents in all material respects the financial condition and resulis of operations of LockSmart, Lid.

Date: March 16, 2007

By: & DavibB. H s

Name: David B. Hills
Title: Chief Executive Officer

1, Joln Simonell, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuvant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of LookSmart, Ltd. on Form 1)-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 1534d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents in all material respects the financial condition and resulis of operations of LockSmart, Lid.

Date: March 16, 2007

By: /s I OHNS IMONELL

Name: J OHN S IMONELLI
Titler  C mer F ivaneial O FRICER



